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REPORT TO THE COMMITTEE

Tuesday, December 2, 1986

The Sub-Committee on the Tobacco-Growing Industry of

the Standing Committee on Agriculture has the honour to
present its

FIRST REPORT

In accordance with its Order of Reference from the Standing
Committee on Agriculture, dated

Wednesday, November 5, 1986, your Sub-Committee has met
to consider its future business and has agreed to recommend
that the Committee seek from the House, on behalf of the
Sub-Committee, the power to adjourn from place to place in
Canada for the purpose of travelling to Prince Edward Island,
Longueuil and Joliette in Quebec, and the Tillsonburg-Delhi
region of Ontario, and authorization for the necessary staff to
accompany the Sub-Committee.

Respectfully submitted,
HARRY BRIGHTWELL,

Chairman.

RAPPORT AU COMITE
Le mardi 2 décembre 1986

Le Sous-comité de la tabaculture du Comité permanent de
I’agriculture a ’honneur de présenter son

PREMIER RAPPORT

Conformément 4 I'ordre de renvoi adopté par le Comité
permanent de P’agriculture le mercredi 5 novembre 1986, le
Sous-comité s’est réuni pour discuter de ses travaux futurs et a
convenu de recommander que le Comité demande i la
Chambre, au nom du Sous-comité, I'autorisation de se
déplacer au Canada pour visiter I'Ile-du-Prince-Edouard,
Longueuil et Joliette au Québec et la région de Tillsonburg et
de Delhi en Ontario, et de se faire accompagner du personnel
nécessaire.

Respectueusement soumis,
Le président,

HARRY BRIGHTWELL.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS PROCES-VERBAUX

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 26, 1986 LE MERCREDI 26 NOVEMBRE 1986

8)) (1)

[Text] [Texte]

The Sub-Committee on the Tobacco-Growing Industry of
the Standing Committee on Agriculture met this day at 3:36
o’clock p.m.

Members of the Sub-Committee present: Vic Althouse,
Harry Brightwell and Maurice Foster.

Acting Members present: Bud Bradley for Ross Belsher; and
Walter Van De Walle for Arnold Malone.

The Sub-Committee met for the purposes of organization.
The Clerk presided over the election of the Chairman.

On motion of Bud Bradley, it was agreed,—That Harry
Brightwell do take the Chair of this Sub-Committee as
Chairman.

Accordingly, Harry Brightwell was declared duly elected
Chairman of the Sub-Committee and took the Chair.

On motion of Bud Bradley, it was agreed,—That Ross
Belsher be elected Vice-Chairman of this Sub-Committee.

The Order of Reference adopted by the Standing Commit-
tee on Agriculture on Wednesday, November 5, 1986, being
read as follows:

That, in accordance with its mandate under Standing Order
96(2), the Committee establish a Sub-Committee on the
Tobacco-Growing Industry for the purpose of making
recommendations on maintaining socio-economic stability in
those regions of Canada adversely affected by the decline in
tobacco consumption and production, by considering among
other things:

(a) employment problems in affected areas, and

(b) development of other crops through agronomic
research, technology transfer, processing and market
development, and financial assistance relating thereto;

That the Sub-Committee be composed of five (5) members
of the Committee, including three (3) from the Progressive
Conservative Party, one (1) from the Liberal Party and one
(1) from the New Democratic Party, to be named by the
Chairman of the Committee; and

That the Sub-Committee be granted all the powers of the
Committee except the power to report directly to the House.

On motion of Bud Bradley, it was agreed,—That the Sub-
Committee’s Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence be printed
in the quantity established by the Board of Internal Economy.

On motion of Bud Bradley, it was agreed,—That the
Chairman request the services of one or more Research
Officers from the Library of Parliament, as needed, to assist
the Sub-Committee in its work.

It was agreed,—That the following be invited to appear
before the Sub-Committee:

Le Sous-comité de la tabaculture du Comité permanent de
’agriculture se réunit aujourd’hui a 15 h 36.

Membres du Sous-comité présents: Vic Althouse, Harry
Brightwell et Maurice Foster.

Membres suppléants présents: Bud Bradley remplace Ross
Belsher; et Walter Van De Walle remplace Arnold Malone.

Le Sous-comité tient sa séance d’organisation.
Le greffier préside 1’élection du président.

Sur motion de Bud Bradley, il est convenu,—Que Harry
Brightwell soit élu président du Sous-comité.

En conséquence, le greffier déclare Harry Brightwell
président du Sous-comité et ce dernier prend la présidence.

Sur motion de Bud Bradley, il est convenu,—Que Ross
Belsher soit élu vice-président du Sous-comité.

Lecture de I'ordre de renvoi adopté par le Comité permanent
de I'agriculture le mercredi 5 novembre 1986, est donnée dans
ces termes:

Que, en vertu de I'autorité que lui confére I'alinéa 96(2) du
Réglement, le Comité constitue un Sous-comité de la
tabaculture ayant pour mission de présenter des recomman-
dations_concernant le maintien de la stabilité socio-économi-
que des régions du Canada touchées par le déclin de la
consommation et de la production de tabac, et chargé
d’étudier, entre autres:

a) les problémes d’emploi dans les régions touchées,

b) le développement d’autres cultures au moyen de la
recherche agronomique, du transfert de technologies, du
développement de la transformation, de la recherche de
marchés et de I'aide financiére a cet égard;

Que le Sous-comité soit composé de cinq (5) membres du
Comité, dont trois (3) membres du Parti progressiste
conservateur, un (1) membre du Parti libéral et un (1)
membre du Nouveau Parti démocratique, nommés par le
président du Comité;

Que le Sous-comité soit investi de tous les pouvoirs du
Comité, sauf celui de faire rapport directement a la
Chambre.

Sur motion de Bud Bradley, il est convenu,—Que soit publié
le nombre d’exemplaires de Procés-verbaux et témoignages du
Sous-comité établi par le Bureau de régie interne.

Sur motion de Bud Bradley, il est convenu,—Que le
président demande 4 la Bibliothéque du Parlement de désigner
un ou plusieurs attachés de recherche, au besoin, plur assister
le Sous-comité dans ses travaux.

Il est convenu,—Que soient invités 4 comparaitre devant le
Sous-comité les personnes et organismes suivants:
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1. Officials from the Department of Employment and
Immigration responsible for the Rural Transition Plan
and Officials from the Department of Regional Industrial
Expansion;

2. Officials from the Ontario Department of Agriculture
and Food;

3. The Honourable John Wise, Minister of Agriculture;
4. The Canadian Tobacco Manufacturers’ Council.

It was agreed,—That the Sub-Committee do report to the
Standing Committee on Agriculture requesting that the
Committee seek from the House, on behalf of the Sub-
Committee, the power to adjourn from place to place within
Canada for the purpose of visiting Prince Edward Island,
Joliette and Longueuil in Quebec, and the Tillsonburg-Delhi
region of Ontario, and authorization for the necessary staff to
accompany the Sub-Committee.

At 4:20 o'clock p.m., the Sub-Committee adjourned to the
call of the Chair.

'{;){URSDAY, DECEMBER 11, 1986

The Sub-Committee on the Tobacco-Growing Industry of
the Standing Committee on Agriculture met this day at 9:36
o’clock a.m., the Chairman, Harry Brightwell, presiding.

Members of the Sub-Committee present: Vic Althouse,
Harry Brightwell and Maurice Foster.

Acting Member present: Bud Bradley for Arnold Malone.

Other Members present: Pat Binns and Marc Ferland.

In attendance: From the Library of Parliament: Len
Christie and Sally Rutherford, Research Officers.

Witnesses: From the Department of Agriculture: Robert G.
Ray, Director, Special Programs Division, Agriculture
Development Branch. From the Canada Employment and

Immigration Commission: Cal Stotyn, Manager, Canadian
Rural Transition Program.

In accordance with its Order of Reference from the
Standing Committee on Agriculture, the Sub-Committee
proceeded to study the tobacco-growing industry. (See
Minutes of Proceedings for Wednesday, November 26, 1986,
Issue No. 1.)

The witnesses each made statements and answered ques-
tions.

At 10:54 o’clock a.m., the Sub-Committee adjourned to the
call of the Chair.

Thomas Hall

Clerk of the Sub-Committee

1. Des fonctionnaires du ministére de I’Emploi et de
I'Immigration responsables du Programme de réorienta-
tion des agriculteurs, et des fonctionnaires du ministére
de ’Expansion industrielle régionale;

2. Des fonctionnaires du ministére de I’Agriculture et de
I’Alimentation de I’Ontario;

3. Le ministre de I’Agriculture, I’honorable John Wise;
4. Le Conseil canadien des fabricants de produits de tabac.

Il est convenu,—Que le Sous-comité fasse rapport au
Comité permanent de I’agriculture le priant de demander a la
Chambre, au nom du Sous-comité, I'autorisation de se
déplacer dans [I'lle-du-Prince-Edouard, 4 Longueuil et &
Joliette au Québec, et dans la région de Tillsonburg-Delhi en
Ontario, et de se faire accompagner du personnel nécessaire.

A 16 h 20, les travaux du Sous-comité sont suspendus
jusqu’a ce que le président le convoque de nouveau.

LE JEUDI 11 DECEMBRE 1986
2)

Le Sous-comité de la tabaculture du Comité permanent de

Pagriculture se réunit 4 9 h 36 sous la présidence de Harry
Brightwell, président.

Membres du Sous-comité présents: Vic Althouse, Harry
Brightwell et Maurice Foster.

Membre suppléant présent: Bud Bradley remplace Arnold
Malone.

Autres députés présents: Pat Binns et Marc Ferland.

Aussi présents: De la Bibliotheque du Parlement: Len
Christie et Sally Rutherford, attachés de recherche.

Témoins: Du ministére de I'Agriculture: Robert G. Ray,
directeur, Division des programmes spéciaux, Direction
générale du développement agricole. De la Commission
canadienne de I'emploi et de I'immigration: Cal Stotyn, chef,
Programme canadien de réorientation des agriculteurs.

Conformément a 'ordre de renvoi du Comité permanent de
I'agriculture, le Sous-comité entreprend I’examen de I'industrie

tabacultrice. (Voir Proces-verbal du mercredi 26 novembre
1986, fascicule n° 1.)

Les témoins font chacun une déclaration puis répondent aux
questions.

] A 10 h 54, les travaux du Sous-comité sont suspendus
jusqu’a ce que le président le convoque de nouveau.

Le greffier du Sous-comité

Thomas Hall
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EVIDENCE TEMOIGNAGES

(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus) (Enregistrement électronique)

[Texte] [Traduction]

Wednesday, November 26, 1986
® 1537

The Clerk of the Committee: The first item of business of
the subcommittee is to elect a chairman. Is the committee
ready to make motions to that effect?

Mr. Bradley: I move that Dr. Harry Brightwell do take the
Chair of this subcommittee as chairman.

Mr. Foster: I second that.
Motion agreed to

The Clerk: Dr. Brightwell is declared chairman of the
committee.

The Chairman: Thank you, colleagues, for your confidence.

The next item of business is the election of a vice-chairman.
Mr. Belsher agreed to serve in that capacity.

Mr. Bradley: I move that Mr. Belsher be vice-chairman.

Motion agreed to

The Chairman: Let us concentrate on this problem with
tobacco and not on the other ones we are hearing about in the
House.

An hon. member: The socio-political problems.

The Chairman: You got the order of reference from the
Standing Committee on Agriculture. I must say I established
this motion with a lot of discussion with colleagues, trying to
direct the work of this committee into a slightly better defined
area than what we had before, the employment problems in the
affected areas and alternate crops. Is there any need for us to
pursue the discussion on this matter now, or are you prepared
to accept this?

Mr. Althouse: Just one question. Perhaps you cannot answer
it, but I would like it put on the record. I know this is not one
that is recorded anyway, but just amongst us ... Is the fact
that this committee is charged, among other things, with
looking at some proposals for financial assistance going to be
interpreted by the government as an excuse for delaying
implementation of the Tobacco Redux program talked about
in the budget two years ago? We can assume they will
continue on with this current haste, then.

® 1540

Mr. Bradley: Yes.

The Chairman: Can we accept the mandate as adopted by
the committee? Apparently, the clerk says we cannot change
it, but we can discuss it. Is there any need to discuss it further?

Le mercredi 26 novembre 1986

Le greffier du Comité: Il s’agit d’abord d’élire un président
pour le sous-comité. Est-ce que vous étes préts & présenter des
motions 2 cet effet?

M. Bradley: Je propose que M. Harry Brightwell soit élu
président du sous-comité.

M. Foster: J’appuie cette motion.
La motion est adoptée

Le greffier: Je déclare M. Brightwell élu président du
Comité.

Le président: Je remercie mes collégues de la confiance dont
ils m’honorent.

Nous devons maintenant élire un vice-président. M. Belsher
est d’accord pour occuper ce poste.

M. Bradley: Je propose que M. Belsher soit élu vice-
président.

La motion est adoptée

Le président: Nous allons donc porter notre attention sur le
probléme du tabac et non pas sur les autres questions dont on
s’occupe 4 la Chambre.

Une voix: Les problémes socio-politiques.

Le président: Vous avez regu un ordre de renvoi du Comité
permanent de I’agriculture. Je dois vous avouer que j’ai rédigé
cette motion aprés en avoir beaucoup discuté avec mes
collégues, afin que le travail du Comité soit un peu mieux
défini qu’il ne I’était précédemment, par exemple les problémes
d’emploi dans les régions touchées et les autres cultures.
Devons-nous poursuivre cette discussion maintenant ou étes-
vous disposés a accepter cette motion?

M. Althouse: Je voudrais simplement poser une question.
Vous ne pouvez peut-étre pas y répondre, mais j’aimerais
qu’elle soit consignée au compte rendu. Je sais qu’il ne s’agit
pas d’une question qui sera enregistrée de toute fagon, mais
entre nous ... Le fait que le Comité soit chargé entre autres
d’étudier certaines propositions d’aide financiére sera-t-il
interprété par le gouvernement comme une excuse pour
retarder la mise en vigueur du programme Tobacco Redux
dont il était question dans le budget d’il y a deux ans? Nous
pouvons présumer qu’on s’occupera de cette question avec la
diligence dont le gouvernement fait preuve habituellement.

M. Bradley: Oui.

Le président: Pouvons-nous accepter le mandat tel
qu’adopté par le Comité? Le greffier nous dit qu’apparemment
nous ne pouvons le modifier, mais nous pouvons en discuter.
Voulez-vous qu’on en discute davantage?
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[Texte]

Mr. Foster: We are talking about the development of other
crops through agronomic research, technology transfer,
processing and market development. There is financial
assistance, too. Does the whole thing flow together? It seems
to me that the one thing the government should be doing is
research on market development. I do not know whether this
says that or not; processing and market development.

'l wonder whether it would not be better to have those
things—we are studying those things—all lined up, one, two,
three. We are talking about the development of other crops
through research; we are talking about technology. These are
?hings that we will be studying: technology transfer, research
into market development, and financial assistance. I believe we
are talking about financial assistance to the industry, not

financial assistance for research into other crops. Is that
correct?

Mr. Bradley: Yes.
The Chairman: Go ahead, Dr. Bradley.

Mr. Bradley: Initially, discussions in the area have been just
about as you have said, research into alternate crop processing
and research into alternate crop marketing. I think, at the time
this was hashed around, we decided that, rather than just
restricting it to that, to allow for technicological transfer.
There might be some from peanuts, or ginseng, transferred
frqm another country, or that we may have to purchase or
bring in. There was also the financial assistance that was
related to the researching of the crop through the Delhi
Research Station, and the bringing in of some expertise to
research marketing of new crops, etc.

So I think it was thought that it would all be in one general

area, which would not leave the subcommittee too restricted
and too structured.

The Chairman: Dr. Foster, I think we tried to set up the
motion so that it would not constrict, but would direct
thinking. I do not think there are any limitations in here for
anything that we might propose outside of this. But I feel that,
for the short time that I would expect the subcommittee to be
in existence, we cannot take a huge, great big bite of the
problem. We cannot look at the Tobacco Redux Plan. We
cannot do marketing boards and all that.

We are trying to redirect it, as much as we can, this way, so
that the witnesses who come will think about this, rather than
restricting our total consideration of the matter. Certainly,
regardless of how this is written, that is how I would interpret
it, anyway. We will look at whatever we choose as a subcom-
mittee to look at.

Mr. Althouse.

Mr. Althouse: How strict are we going to be in interpreting
the financial assistance related thereto? The beginning of the
motion says that we are supposed to make recommendations

[Traduction)

M. Foster: Il s’agit du développement d’autres cultures au
moyen de la recherche agronomique, du transfert de technolo-
gie, du développement de la transformation et de la recherche
de marchés. Il est également question d’aide financiére. Est-ce
que toutes ces questions sont regroupées? J'ai I'impression que
le gouvernement devrait faire une chose, c’est-a-dire de la
recherche sur le développement des marchés. Je ne sais pas s'il

est question ici ou non de la transformation et du développe-
ment des marchés.

Est-ce qu’il ne vaudrait pas mieux ordonner tous ces
sujets—que nous allons étudier—comme étant respectivement
le premier, le deuxiéme et le troisiéme. Nous mentionnons le
développement d’autres cultures au moyen de la recherche
agronomique, nous mentionnons également la technologie. Ce
sont 1a des questions que nous allons étudier: le transfert de
technologie, la recherche en matiére de développement des
marchés et l'aide financiére. Nous mentionnons également
'aide financiére au secteur du tabac, mais non pas l'aide
financiére 4 la recherche concernant d’autres cultures. C’est
bien cela n’est-ce pas?

M. Bradley: Oui.
Le président: Vous avez la parole, monsieur Bradley.

M. Bradley: Initialement, nous en avons discuté de la facon
que vous avez dit, c’est-a-dire qu’il était question de recherche
pour d’autres cultures, de transformation et de recherche pour
la mise en marché d’autres cultures. Nous avons discuté de ces
questions et décidé, plutdt que de nous en tenir 14, de permettre
un débat sur le transfert de technologie. Ce peut étre le cas
pour les arachides, ou le ginseng venant d’autres pays, ou qu’il
nous faudra peut-étre acheter et importer ici. Il avait égale-
ment été question d’une aide financiére liée 4 la recherche sur
les cultures au centre de recherche de Delhi et 4 la possibilité
de faire venir des experts en commercialisation de nouvelles
cultures, etc.

Par conséquent, nous devions discuter de fagon trés générale
afin que le sous-comité ne soit pas trop limité ou trop struc-
turé.

Le président: Monsieur Foster, nous avons cherché a rédiger
une motion qui ne soit pas trop limitative, et qui pouvait
orienter notre travail. Je ne crois pas qu’elle nous restreigne
dans ce que nous voudrions proposer qui ne soit pas mentionné
ici. Toutefois, étant donné que le sous-comité ne durera pas
trés longtemps, & mon avis, nous ne pouvons aborder de
problémes trop considérables. Nous ne pouvons étudier le plan
Tobacco Redux, ni non plus les offices de commercialisation.

Nous essayons de réorienter de cette facon le travail, autant
que possible, afin que les témoins qui comparaitront abordent
ces sujets plutdt que de limiter le débat. Quelle que soit la
fagon dont c’est &crit ici, nous pouvons bien siir I'interpréter
comme je viens de le faire. Nous allons examiner ce que nous

2

allons choisir d’étudier en tant que sous-comité.
Monsieur Althouse.
M. Althouse: Allons-nous interpréter de fagon trés stricte

l’aid.e financiére dont il est question ici? On dit au début de la
motion que nous sommes censés présenter des recommanda-
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[Text]

regarding the maintenance of socio-economic stability in those
regions, and the (a) part of our subset talks about employment
problems. The way this is written now, my first impression is
to think that financial assistance proposals would only be
related to the development of crops through research, tech-
nology transfer, and so on, in (b), rather than the questions of
broader items that would cover the socio-economic stability of
the community, including employment problems.

® 1545

Now, how are we, as a committee, going to look at proposals
that are brought before us, or recommendations we might
make? Will we limit ourselves to talking about financial
assistance only if it has to do with development of new crops
and the things that are listed in (b), or can we make recom-
mendations that would have an impact on the whole region or
area, including some suggestions that might be proposed to
handle the employment difficulties in the affected area?

The Chairman: Unless other people wish to comment, as far
as I am concerned I doubt if we have the capacity to make
considered direction in those other areas—our limitations in
sheer numbers, time, and all other factors. I do not think this
motion was designed to restrict us, if we in our wisdom choose
to go there, but more designed to direct the witnesses.

Mr. Bradley: Will the standing committee make any
decision thereto on other aspects?

The Chairman: Would the Standing Committee on Agricul-
ture really take a role in specific socio-economic policies, or
perhaps simply to suggest they be studied more in a different
direction?

Mr. Althouse: I understand there is some discussion ongoing
with the Ministers of Finance and Agriculture among these
various communities and the tobacco people dealing more with
the socio-economic stability side. The 1985 budget, I guess it
is, was talking about all the $600 million raised in extra taxes
being dedicated to that kind of work, or is it only 30 million or
40 million, which is apparently the figure usually talked about
by the departmental people.

Mr. Bradley: The 1.5¢ per package.

Mr. Althouse: I suppose we could assume that those kinds of
discussions would go on at that level and they do not bring
them to us. Is that how I read it? That way we would not be
interfering with ongoing discussions, I suppose.

The Chairman: I would see it exactly that way.

Mr. Althouse: I do not want this committee to be seen as a
way of avoiding or interfering with . .. Those discussions have

[Translation]

tions concernant le maintien de la stabilité socio-économique
pour ces régions et, dans I'alinéa a), il est question de probleé-
mes d’emplois dans les régions touchées. De la facon dont la
motion est rédigée, ma premiére impression me porte a croire
que laide financiére n’a trait qu’au développement d’autres
cultures au moyen de la recherche agronomique, le transfert de
technologie, etc. 4 I’alinéa b), et non pas aux questions
beaucoup plus vastes qui rejoignent la stabilité socio-économi-
que de la collectivité, y compris les problémes d’emploi.

En comité, allons-nous étudier les propositions que nous
avons devant nous ou présenter des recommandations? Allons-
nous nous simplement discuter d’aide financiére si elle a trait
seulement au développement d’autres cultures et a ce qui est
mentionné a I'alinéa b), ou allons-nous présenter des recom-
mandations qui auraient des répercussions sur toute la région
ou le secteur, y compris des suggestions pour tenter de
résoudre les difficultés d’emploi dans les régions touchées?

Le président: A moins que d’autres députés aient quelque
chose a dire a ce sujet, je doute personnellement que nous
ayons la possibilité de faire beaucoup dans ces autres domai-
nes—nous sommes limités parce que nous sommes peu
nombreux, que nous disposons de peu de temps et pour
d’autres raisons également. Je ne crois pas que cette motion
soit censée nous limiter, si dans notre sagesse nous décidons
d’aborder ces sujets, mais la motion visait surtout 4 orienter les
témoins.

M. Bradley: Le Comité permanent prendra-t-il des décisions
au sujet d’autres aspects de la question?

Le président: Est-ce que le Comité permanent de I'agricul-
ture jouera vraiment un rdle en matiére de politiques socio-
économiques spécifiques ou proposera-t-il simplement que ces
politiques soient étudiées en les abordant de fagon un peu
différente?

M. Althouse: Je crois comprendre que les ministres de
I’Agriculture et des Finances discutent présentement avec les
diverses collectivités et les représentants du secteur du tabac,
surtout de stabilité socio-économique. Le budget de 1985, je
crois, mentionnait que 600 millions de dollars avaient été
pergus en taxes additionnelles pour faire ce genre de travail, ou
est-ce qu’il ne s’agit que de 30 ou 40 millions de dollars, la
somme habituellement mentionnée par les fonctionnaires du
ministére.

M. Bradley: Il s’agit de 1.5 par groupe.

M. Althouse: Nous pouvons supposer, j’imagine, que ce
genre de discussion se poursuivra a ce palier et que nous
n’allons pas y participer. C’est bien cela? De cette fagon, nous
n’allons pas nous ingérer dans les discussions qui se poursui-
vent.

Le président: C’est exactement de cette fagon que je vois les
choses.

M. Althouse: Je ne veux pas que le Comité soit pergu
comme cherchant a éviter ou a s’ingérer . . . Des discussions se
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been going on almost two years. They have to get finished
some time.

Mr. Bradley: February budget, 1.5¢. It comes to just about
$30 million. There is ongoing discussion with people from the
indu§try, from the growers, from the manufacturers, and the
provinces on that, and there is still also the advanced crop
payments, which we would not be involved in, that have been
bumped again. I, too, would hate to see us interfere with
something else that might assist them and hold it up because
of some discussions we are doing. But I think we could lean on
the Minister, if it came to that. I am sure you fellows would.

Mr. Althouse: I think it is worthwhile having this fairly clear
in the committee so that we know if any of the Ministers or the
groups involved think this is, or ourselves—try not to use it as
a way of holding up those discussions.

Mr. Bradley: You probably would have liked to have seen,
Vic, “and financial assistance relating thereto” as a number

(@)

Mr. Althouse: Well, that would have been simpler, but that

pf.rhaps would have got in the way of some of these other
discussions.

Mr. Bradley: Community futures and whatever.
Mr. Althouse: Yes.

The Chairman: Any other comments?
Dr. Foster.

Mr. Foster: You know, we have an industry where a lot of
these guys have left. Are we going to examine means of
employment for them that does not have to do with farming? I
mean, we are talking about socio-economic impacts, so we
must be talking about income support or assistance. Then we

are gqing to examine employment problems in affected areas.
That is probably income support.
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But then there is a market there for some of the product
they grow. So obviously we are going to talk about the
marketing system, and then we are going to talk about
alternative crops. It seeems to me the most important part of
that is making a recommendation relating to research on
alternative crops. Hell, those guys, if you tell them what they
can grow, they can grow it.

Mr. Bradley: There is not much sense in researching the
alternate crops unless you can process them and market them.
They can grow all the peanuts you want down there right now,
but they cannot sell them. They can grow ginseng, but they
cannot sell it.

Mr. Foster: Yes, that is what I am saying.

Mr. Bradley: The research also has to go into the processing.

26582——2

[Traduction]

poursuivent depuis prés de deux ans. Il faut qu’elles se
terminent 4 un moment donné.

M. Bradley: Au paragraphe 1.5, du budget de février, il
n’est question que d’environ 30 millions de dollars. On discute
toujours avec les gens du secteur, les agriculteurs, les fabri-
cants et les provinces. Il est toujours question de paiements
anticipés pour les cultures, nous n’avons pas 4 nous en occuper,
ces paiements ayant de nouveau été annulés. Je n’aimerais pas
du tout moi non plus que nous arrivions avec quelque chose
d’autre qui pourrait les aider a4 retarder davantage leurs
discussions. Mais j’estime que nous pouvons exercer quelque
pression sur le ministre, si nous en venons & cela. Je suis
certain que vous messieurs, vous le feriez.

M. Althouse: C’est trés utile que nous soulevions ces
questions en comité, afin que nous sachions si un des ministres
ou les groupes impliqués croient que nos discussions ou que
nous-mémes—il ne faudrait pas s’en servir comme moyen pour
retarder le débat.

M. Bradley: Vic, vous auriez probablement aimé qu’on y lise
«et une aide financiére s’y rapportant» en tant qu’alinéa c).

M. Althouse: Cela aurait été plus simple, mais nous aurions
peut-étre de cette fagon géné les autres discussions.

M. Bradley: Pour I'avenir des collectivités par exemple.
M. Althouse: Oui.

Le président: Avez-vous d’autres remarques?
Monsieur Foster.

M. Foster: Nous avons un secteur que bien des gens ont
quitté, vous savez. Allons-nous étudier la fagon de les employer
dans autre chose que I'agriculture? Nous parlons d’impact
socio-économique, par conséquent nous devons également
mentionner 1'aide ou [I’assistance au revenu. Nous allons
également examiner les problémes d’emplois dans les régions
touchées. Cela rejoint probablement ’aide au revenu.

Toutefois, il existe un marché pour certains des produits
qu’ils cultivent. Nous allons aborder également le régime de
commercialisation ainsi que les autres cultures. Ce qui me
semble le plus important c’est de présenter une recommanda-
tion concernant la recherche relative aux autres cultures.

Diable, si I'on dit & ces bonshommes ce qu’ils peuvent cultiver,
ils vont le cultiver.

M. Bradley: Faire de la recherche sur d’autres cultures n’a
pas beaucoup de sens & moins que I’on puisse les transformer et
les commercialiser. Ils peuvent cultiver toutes les arachides que
vous voulez, mais ils ne peuvent pas les vendre. Ils peuvent
cultiver le ginseng, mais ils ne peuvent pas le vendre.

M. Foster: Oui, c’est bien ce que je dis.

M.\ Bradley: Il faut également faire de la recherche en
matiére de transformation.
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Mr. Foster: The research has go into the crop, not the
growing or the processing. Hell, they can do that. I am sure
they can figure that out very rapidly. They are a pretty bright
bunch of guys. The problem is what is the crop?

Mr. Bradley: I think we will get back, Mr. Chairman, to the
proposal you had before from the research station down there,
on how they had planned on spending additional funds for
marketing and research too. They were going to be one of the
witnesses, before.

The Chairman: I think what we are saying is that it is good
to have the discussion to see the difficulty it is to zero in on
something we as a subcommittee can achieve with our
restricted time. I suspect if we took all the problems we could
look at ... it is three years for a major commission, and we
just do not have resources of that kind.

Mr. Foster: Is there some time stricture on this?

The Chairman: Not in any real sense, no. But I would like to
see it done quickly, say in two months or some figure like that;
something that is in and out quickly, with as much meat as we
can get in our report in that period of time. Then if we come
up with areas that require further study, we can recommend to
somebody else to take on that task.

Mr. Foster: I wonder if we should be saying employment
problems and income support in affected areas.

The Chairman: Apparently we cannot amend this. This has
been referred to us. But we can interpret it in whichever way
we choose.

Mr. Bradley: We can interpret it as meaning that.

Mr. Foster: Has this been passed by the House?

Mr. Bradley: The standing committee. This is the order of
reference from the standing committee to us.

Mr. Foster: What about the whole question of the market-
ing board? Do we want to familiarize ourselves with wherever
that stands?

Mr. Bradley: The marketing board is established provin-
cially.

Mr. Foster: I meant the national marketing board. I suppose
it is only a question of determining the legal position, and so
on, of that. But surely if we support it, we should be making
our recommendation on that.

The Chairman: There would be no problem in talking to
them as witnesses, is what you are saying, if we wish to inform
ourselves more about it; and you feel it is a responsibility of the
committee to do that.

[Translation]

M. Foster: La recherche doit se faire au niveau de la récolte
et non pas de la culture ou de la transformation. Enfin, ils
peuvent le faire. Je suis certain qu’ils peuvent se débrouiller
trés rapidement. Ce sont des gars intelligents. Le probléme est
de savoir de quelle culture il s’agit?

M. Bradley: Nous allons revenir, monsieur le président, a la
proposition que vous avez regue concernant le centre de
recherche, et la facon dont ces gens-la se proposent de
dépenser les fonds additionnels pour la commercialisation et la
recherche également. Ce doit étre un de nos témoins.

Le président: Nous sommes d’accord qu’il serait bon d’avoir
une discussion de ce genre pour voir §’il y a des difficultés et
pour décider vraiment de ce que le sous-comité doit faire en
peu de temps. Si nous mentionnons tous les problémes que
nous pourrions étudier . .. on pourrait former une commission
qui durerait trois ans, et nous n’en avons tout simplement pas
les moyens.

M. Foster: A-t-on prévu un délai?

Le président: Non vraiment. J’aimerais cependant que le
travail se fasse rapidement, disons en I'espace de deux mois
environ; nous recevons le mandat, nous I’exécutons et nous
déposons un rapport aussi substantiel que possible dans ce laps
de temps. Si certaines questions exigent davantage d’études,
nous pouvons recommander que quelqu’un d’autre s’en charge.

M. Foster: Je me demande si nous ne pourrions pas men-
tionner les problémes d’emploi et de soutien du revenu pour les
régions touchées.

Le président: Nous ne pouvons apparemment pas modifier
la motion.” Elle nous a été déférée. Nous pouvons cependant
I'interpréter de la fagon que nous voulons.

M. Bradley: Nous ne pouvons linterpréter simplement
comme cela.

M. Foster: A-t-elle été adoptée a la Chambre?

M. Bradley: Elle I'a été par le Comité permanent. Il s’agit
d’un ordre de renvoi que le Comité permanent nous transmet.

M. Foster: Qu’allons-nous faire pour I'ensemble de la
question touchant les offices de commercialisation? Voulez-
vous que nous nous informions pour savoir ol en sont les
choses?

M. Bradley: L’Office de commercialisation est établi par la
province.

M. Foster: Je voulais parler de I'Office national de commer-
cialisation. J'estime qu'’il s’agit tout simplement de déterminer
la position légale de cette question par exemple. Si nous
pouvons ’appuyer, nous pouvons alors présenter une recom-
mandation dans ce sens.

Le président: Nous pouvons discuter avec I’Office en tant
que témoin, cela ne pose pas de probléme, c’est bien comme
cela que vous I'entendez, si nous voulons nous renseigner
davantage a ce sujet, et si vous étes d’avis que le Comité a une
responsabilité sur ce plan.
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Mr. Foster: Well, I do. It just seems to me that second

paragraph is all meshed together. I guess they got all the right
words.

Mr. Bradley: We could consider the national agency under
(@), because a national agency would certainly affect the
employment problems in affected areas.

Mr. Foster: Yes.

Mr. Bradley: That is the all-catching expression.

Mr. Foster: Well, if this thing has been adopted, I guess we
do not have to adopt it. That is the way it is. But maybe we
could just go through it and get it clear in our own minds what

we are going to do, because we have heard from most of the
players.

3 The Chairman: Well, that is not true. There is a very long
list of other people who wish to speak to us. Agriculture
Canada and the Ontario Flue-Cured Tobacco Growers’
Marketing Board I believe are all we have heard from. So we

have just started to touch on that as far as the players are
concerned.

Mr. Foster: I should say we have had a very extensive
background briefing. I think there have been about three
meetings with the departmental people.

_ The Chairman: Can we perhaps understand the mandate as
it is written here, and maybe not understand it totally, because
I think it is going to have to develop. We know how our
mandate is written, in any case.
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Perhaps we can move on, then, to the other procedural
problems today and then perhaps talk about witnesses at a
later time in this process.

Mr. Foster: Agreed.

The Chairman: Okay. On the matter of hearings without a
quorum, the clerk has pointed out that in a reduced committee
of five ... Remember we had a committee of seven the last
time. For the sake of efficiency and convenience, 1 agreed to
work with a committee of five. I will tell you that I am already
seeing difficulties in manpower in doing so. But I feel confi-
dent that we are going to work towards the welfare of the
farmer and I feel we can do so without any great partisan
problems in this committee. But for hearing witnesses, surely
three people should be adequate.

Mr. Bradley: Three and one.

The Chairman: Yes, three, with one of these being an
opposition member. Is that agreed?

Mr. Foster: One thing is that the opposition member should
be consulted when a meeting is called. With a big committee,
meetings are being called helter-skelter, with opposition
members not being consulted. Hell, if you are not consulted—
we are all doing three or four things around here—how can
you have a meeting? Often you will have to go ahead with the
meeting anyway with only Vic or me being here, but if we are
not consulted we are really being left out in the cold.

[Traduction]

M. Foster: Je le crois. J’ai toutefois I'impression que le
deuxiéme alinéa est trop compact. J'imagine que le libellé est
exact.

M. Bradley: Nous pourrions interroger I’Office national sous
l'alinéa a) étant donné que I'Office national peut agir sur
I’emploi dans les régions touchées.

M. Foster: Oui.
M. Bradley: C’est une expression qui englobe tout.

M. Foster: Si cette motion est adoptée, j'imagine que nous
devons aussi ’adopter. C’est comme cela. Nous pourrions
cependant la relire et bien comprendre ce que nous allons faire,
étant donné que nous avons entendu la plupart des personnes
concernées.

Le président: Eh bien ce n’est pas exact. Il y a une longue
liste de personnes qui désirent nous rencontrer. Nous n’avons
entendu, je crois, que les représentants d’Agriculture Canada
et ceux de I'Office de commercialisation des producteurs de
tabac jaune. Nous n’avons abordé la question que dans la
mesure ol les personnes intéressées sont concernées.

M. Foster: Je dois dire que nous avons eu une séance
d’information exhaustive. Nous avons rencontré les représen-
tants du ministére a trois reprises, je crois.

Le président: Nous pourrions peut-étre essayer de bien
comprendre le mandat tel qu’il est rédigé ici, méme si nous ne
le comprenons pas en totalité, car il faudra je crois le dévelop-
per un peu. De toute fagon, nous savons comment est rédigé le
texte de notre mandat.

Nous pouvons peut-étre poursuivre et aborder les autres
problémes de procédure aujourd’hui et discuter des témoins
lors d’une autre réunion.

M. Foster: D’accord.

Le président: Bien. Au sujet des audiences sans quorum, le
greffier me signale que notre Comité est limité a cinq
députés . . . Souvenez-vous que nous avions un comité composé
de sept personnes la derniére fois. Afin que les choses se
fassent facilement et avec efficacité, j’ai accepté que le Comité
se compose de cinq députés. Je vous signale que je prévois déja
des difficultés sur ce plan. Je suis siir toutefois que nous allons
pouvoir travailler pour le bien-étre de I’agriculteur et que nous
pourrons le faire sans partisanerie. Pour les témoins a convo-
quer, il suffit que trois députés soient présents pour en décider.

M. Bradley: Trois et un.

Le président: Oui, trois, dont un du parti de 'opposition
Etes-vous d’accord? iy

M. Foster: Il faut souligner que le député de I'opposition
doit étre consulté lorsqu’une réunion doit avoir lieu. Lorsque
les comités ont beaucoup de députés, les réunions sont un peu
désordonnées et les députés de I'opposition ne sont pas
consultés. Si I'on n’est pas consulté—nous devons tous nous
occuper de trois ou quatre choses 4 la fois—comment pouvons-
nous nous réunir? Trés souvent, il faut absolument tenir une
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The Chairman: Okay, you have my assurance that we will
consult you as much as we can. You were both consulted
today, as an example. You were both available today. So we
will do that.

Mr. Foster: Fine.

The Chairman: So we will sit with three people, then, to
hear witnesses. Am I restricted to having an opposition
member there? I want to have an opposition member there at
all times, but am I restricted in that way?

Mr. Bradley: I think you should be.

The Chairman: Yes. I would like to hear from Mr. Althouse
or Mr. Foster. Mr. Foster.

Mr. Foster: 1 think the main committee does not require
that, does it?

Mr. Althouse: They do not now. They always used to.

The Chairman: Without a quorum we normally do; is that
right?

Mr. Althouse: There was an attempt to stop doing that some
time ago, but I think we have them all back that way again.

The Chairman: I would certainly want it that way, but I
have a fear that we might bring somebody in, and you folks
might be busy, and we would have to turn them away, which
would be regrettable.

Mr. Foster: Yes, that is the hardest part. If you bring in 10
guys from far away and nobody shows up, it is—

The Chairman: Could I perhaps work on the basis that we
will work with three people, with an opposition member at all
times except through consultation with the opposition mem-
bers?

Mr. Foster: Yes.
Mr. Althouse: Yes.

The Chairman: If they give the agreement, we go ahead and
hear the witnesses.

Mr. Bradley: Without votes.
The Chairman: Of course, without votes.
Mr. Foster: So the quorum is three, is it?

The Chairman: Yes, and you can see the precariousness of it
from the standpoint of partisan politics. But I want to—

Mr. Foster: For the taking of evidence.

The Chairman: The taking of evidence is what I am working
on here.

[Translation]

séance méme si Vic ou moi sommes les seuls présents, mais si
nous ne sommes pas consultés, c’est que I’on nous ignore.

Le président: Trés bien, vous avez ma parole que nous allons
vous consulter toutes les fois que c’est possible. Vous avez tous
les deux été consultés aujourd’hui, voild donc un exemple.
Vous étiez tous les deux disponibles. Voild donc ce que nous
allons faire.

M. Foster: Trés bien.

Le président: Nous allons donc siéger avec trois députés,
pour entendre les témoins. Dois-je de nouveau exiger qu’il n’y
ait qu'un député de 'opposition? Je veux qu’il y ait toujours un
député de 'opposition, mais suis-je limité de quelque fagon?

M. Bradley: Je crois que vous devriez I'étre.

Le président: Oui. J’aimerais entendre ce que M. Althouse
ou M. Foster ont 4 dire. Monsieur Foster.

M. Foster: Ce n’est pas une exigence pour le Comité plénier
n’est-ce pas?

M. Althouse: Pas maintenant. C’était le cas auparavant.

Le président: Sans quorum, c’est habituellement ce que nous
faisons, n’est-ce pas?

M. Althouse: Il y a quelque temps, nous avons cherché a
nous en dispenser, mais je crois que maintenant c’est le cas
pour tous les comités.

Le président: Je veux certainement que ce soit le cas ici,
mais j’ai peur que nous convoquions quelqu’un et que vous
soyez, messieurs, trop occupés pour assister a la réunion. Il
faudrait demander 4 ces témoins de revenir et ce serait

regrettable.

M. Foster: Oui, c’est trés difficile. Si nous demandons 4 10
personnes qui demeurent aussi loin de venir ici et qu’aucun
député ne se présente, C'est . . .

Le président: Ne pourrais-je supposer que nous pourrions
peut-étre travailler avec trois députés présents, et qu’un député
d’opposition soit toujours 1a sauf s’il y a eu consultation 4 ce
sujet?

M. Foster: Oui.
M. Althouse: Oui.

Le président: Si les députés de I'opposition qui ne peuvent
pas venir sont d’accord, nous pouvons entendre les témoins
quand méme.

M. Bradley: S’il n’y a pas de vote.
Le président: Bien sir, s’il n’y pas de vote.

M. Foster: Par conséquent, le quorum est de trois députés,
n’est-ce pas?

Le président: Oui, et nous verrons 4 quel point la situation
risque de mener au sectarisme politique. Toutefois, je désire-
raisuost

M. Foster: Pour enregistrer les témoignages.

Le président: C’est bien de cela que je veux discuter.
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Mr. Foster: If you are to go ahead without an opposition

member, then it will not be done without complications. All we
are doing here is a report.

The Chairman: The clerk has suggested that we simply
record this as an agreement among colleagues that we would
hear evidence with three people, with an opposition member
present at all times except where we have discussed with you

and you have given us agreement to go ahead. That should
cover all needs.

Mr. Foster: That is fine, yes.

Mr. Althouse: If both of us get sick or are in a car accident,

we will have someone from our parties say it is okay to operate
without us.

The Chairman: Does this mean you travel in the same car or
that you expect to hit each other?

Mr. Althouse: No.

Mr. Bradley: Perhaps Lynn could come in your place.
Mr. Althouse: Yes, I think she is going to be my back-up.

The Chairman: Let us move ahead to item 6, please, the
printing of issues.

Mr. Bradley: I so move.

The Chairman: It is moved by Mr. Bradley that the
subcommittee’s Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence be

printed in the quantity established by the Board of Internal
Economy.

Motion agreed to

The Chairman: Thank you. Next is the motion concerning
research officers.

An hon. member: I so move.

Motion agreed to

An hon. member: Do we know who has been designated by
the Library?

The Chairman: I understand Len is presently incapacitated.
We assume he will be back—

A Voice: We are hoping the first week of December.

The Chairman: Okay, the main committee has worked on
the basis of ten-minute and five-minute rules. Really, gentle-
men, I would like to approach it on the basis that we want the
matter pursued adequately, to the satisfaction of us all, and
could it be left in my hands to try to make sure a question is
finished and we move to somebody else? I will try within
reason to follow the guidelines to give everybody an adequate
opportunity.

[Traduction)

M. Foster: Si vous devez entendre les témoins sans qu’il y ait
un député de I'opposition, cela ne peut se faire sans qu’il y ait
des problémes. Tout ce que nous faisons ici est de rédiger un
rapport.

Le président: Le greffier a proposé que nous tenions compte
simplement du fait qu'il s’agit d’un accord entre collégues et
que nous allons entendre les témoignages si trois députés sont
présents, un député de Iopposition étant présent en tout temps
sauf si nous en avons discuté avec un ou l'autre député de
I'opposition et qu’ils nous aient donné leur accord pour que
nous allions de I’avant. Nous tenons donc compte de tous les
besoins.

M. Foster: C’est trés bien.

M. Althouse: Si nous sommes tous les deux malades ou si
nous avons un accident de voiture, quelqu’un de nos partis vous
dira trés bien, vous pouvez siéger sans nous.

Le président: Cela signifie-t-il que vous allez voyager dans
la méme voiture ou que vous vous attendez a vous frapper I'un
'autre?

M. Althouse: Non.
M. Bradley: Peut-étre que Lynn peut vous remplacer.
M. Althouse: Oui, je crois qu’elle sera ma remplagante.

Le président: Passons donc maintenant a4 la question 6,
I'impression des fascicules.

M. Bradley: J’en fais la proposition.

Le président: M. Bradl;y propose que les Proceés-verbaux et
témoignages de ce Comité soient imprimés sur la quantité
établie par le Bureau de régie interne.

La motion est adoptée

Le président: Je vous remercie. La prochaine motion a trait
aux documentalistes.

Une voix: Je propose cette motion.
La motion est adoptée

Une voix: Savons-nous qui la bibliothéque a désigné?

Le président: Je crois comprendre que Len ne peut présente-

ment s’acquitter de ses fonctions. Nous supposons qu’il
reviendra . . .

Une voix: Nous espérons qu'il sera de retour la premiére
semaine de décembre.

Le président: Trés bien, le Comité plénier a prévu un
réglement afin que les tours soient de 10 minutes au lieu de
cinq minutes. J'aimerais, messieurs, que nous abordions la
question de fagon appropriée, afin que vous soyez tous
satlsfaitg, et je veux m’assurer que nous en avons terminé avec
un témoin avant de passer 4 un autre. Je vais essayer, autant

que faire se peut, de me conformer aux directives pour donner
a chacun sa chance.
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Mr. Althouse: I think that will work best in this case.
The Chairman: The chairman’s prerogative then?
Mr. Althouse: Yes.

The Chairman: The clerk has said we can go in camera at
this point, if we wish, on future business. I have no reason to
do this. I am going to suggest that we talk about two witnesses,
perhaps, in the immediate future that we could meet as a
group to establish what we wish to do thereafter. The research-
ers have set up a proposal for meetings which you do not have
in your hand, which I have in front of me. There is nothing
secret about it; I just did not distribute it. I had no prerogative
to do so until this moment.

It is suggested we hear from Employment and Immigration
on how the Rural Transition Program might affect the farmers
in our area and from the Department of Regional Industrial
Expansion on its mandate and role in developing industry in
areas such as we are talking about; in Delhi-Tillsonburg, as an
example.

I wonder if it might be reasonable to ask the clerk to
establish meetings of the subcommittee to hear from these
people immediately and allow us to establish future witnesses
at a future time.

Mr. Foster: I wonder if it is not better to hear from the guys
on the ground first and then hear from the departmental
people as to what they have in mind in terms of programs that
are available and so on.

The problem is that, if you go and just hear from the
department without hearing from the people who are losing
jobs or looking for jobs or looking for assistance, you tend
never to get back to the people in the department. I guess you
can do it either way, but . . .

The Chairman: One reason for taking the department as
soon as we can is they are available but it is going to take us a
while to get these other people worked into a brief. The other
part of this is that we need to travel, I believe, really to hear
the grassroots, and that is going to take a budget process.

Mr. Althouse: How long will that take to get?

The Chairman: Mr. Clerk, how long will it take, do you
think, on this basis? A month?

The Clerk: I am afraid to say. It should not take long. It
depends on how much detail we can work out at this meeting.

The Chairman: All right. So it could take a week or two
weeks, or it might take longer. We do not know that and we
are not able to direct our own futures in that regard.

Mr. Althouse: Realistically, we are not likely to be travelling
out of Ottawa till after the holiday, I suppose.

[Translation]

M. Althouse: C’est ce qui sera le mieux dans ce cas-ci.
Le président: Il revient donc au président d’en décider?
M. Althouse: Oui.

Le président: Le greffier me dit que nous pouvons siéger a
huis clos, & ce moment-ci, si nous le désirons pour discuter des
questions futures. Je n’en vois pas la nécessité. J'allais proposer
que nous discutions de deux témoins a convoquer trés bientdt
peut-étre, nous pourrions les rencontrer en tant que groupe
afin de décider ce que nous voulons faire par la suite. Les
documentalistes ont établi un calendrier des séances que vous
n’avez pas encore regu mais que j'ai devant moi. Il ne contient
rien de secret, je ne I'ai tout simplement pas distribué. Je
n’avais pas 4 le faire avant ce moment-ci.

On_ propose que nous entendions les représentants du
ministére de I'Emploi et de I'Immigration afin de savoir
comment le programme de réorientation des agriculteurs
pourrait toucher les agriculteurs dans votre région et aussi les
représentants du ministére de ’Expansion industrielle régio-
nale au sujet de son mandat et du rdle qu’il doit jouer pour
développer I'industrie dans les régions dont nous avons parlées,
a Delhi-Tillsonburg par exemple.

Est-ce qu’il serait raisonnable de demander au greffier de
prévoir des réunions de ce comité pour entendre ces gens dés
maintenant afin que nous puissions prévoir les futurs témoins.

M. Foster: Ne vaudrait-il pas mieux entendre les gens qui
sont sur le terrain d’abord et entendre ensuite les représentants
des ministéres afin de savoir ce qu’ils ont prévu comme
programme par exemple.

Il pourrait y avoir une difficulté si nous entendons d’abord
les gens du ministére sans entendre ceux qui perdent leur
emploi ou qui cherchent du travail ou veulent obtenir de I’aide,
car habituellement on ne convoque pas de nouveau les gens du
ministére. J’estime que I'on peut procéder des deux fagons,
mais . . .

Le président: Une des raisons pour lesquelles nous allons
convoquer les représentants du ministére dés que possible, c’est
parce qu’ils sont disponibles, mais il nous faudra un peu de
temps pour inclure les autres personnes dans le mémoire. Par
ailleurs, nous devons voyager, je crois, pour entendre sur place
ce qui se fait; il faudra donc prévoir un budget.

M. Althouse: Combien faudra-t-il de temps pour I'obtenir?

Le président: Monsieur le greffier, combien faudra-t-il
temps a votre avis? Un mois?

Le greffier: C'est difficile 4 dire, ce ne devrait pas étre long.
Ca dépend de tout ce que nous déciderons a cette réunion-ci.

Le président: Trés bien. Il faudrait donc une ou deux
semaines, ou peut-étre méme un peu plus longtemps. Nous ne
savons pas et nous ne pouvons donc pas orienter nos travaux
futurs a cause de cela.

M. Althouse: Il faut étre réalistes, nous n’allons pas
probablement quitter Ottawa d’ici le congé de Noél.
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The Chairman: I think you are totally realistic, because they

are not going to welcome us just the week before Christmas
down there.

Mr. Althouse: Right.

Mr. Foster: I wonder if we should hear from the Ontario
Ministry of Agriculture and Food as well.

The Chairman: Did they wish to speak to us?

f Mr. Foster: Well, we wish to speak to them. Anythipg that
is likely to be done is going to be 50:50, is it not—or is it going
to be more federal?

The Chairman: I am not in a position to answer that. Mr.
Bradley—

Mr. Foster: The reason to have them is to find out just what
they are doing so if we do go to meet with farm groups later on
we will have a better and more comprehensive picture.

Mr. Bradley: There is a lot of discussion right now about
th_at very thing, trying to get provincial co-operation on a lot of
things, such as they did on the tomato paste.

The Chairman: I can tell you that we have in the file a letter
from, I believe, the Quebec ministry, who said they preferred
to speak with the government organization for their type of
solution rather than to speak through our committee. I think
that is a fair paraphrasing of that letter, and it was from
Quebec, was it not?

The Clerk: Yes.

The Chairman: Did Ontario answer us in that regard?
The Clerk: I do not recall if they did.

The Chairman: Not the Ontario Ministry of Agriculture and

Food—they have not—but the Ontario Flue-Cured Tobacco
Growers’ Marketing Board.

Mr. Foster: So the Quebec government would rather speak
to whom?

The Chairman: The organization, the discussions ongoing
for the Tobacco Redux Plan, in that area, in that ballpark,
they wish to direct their energies that way. There are no real
reasons why we cannot circulate that letter.

® 1605
Mr. Bradley: There are only 123 growers in Quebec.

Mr. Foster: Yes. But I think if we could talk to the Ontario
government, whether it is their department of industry or of
agriculture . . . I would think you would start with agriculture,
but there might be other agencies.

Mr. Bradley: The provincial farm products marketing board
licenses the Flue-Cured Tobacco Growers’ Marketing Board

[Traduction]

Le président: Je crois que vous avez tout a fait raison, car les
gens ne vont pas étre trés accueillants la semaine avant Nogl.

M. Althouse: C’est exact.

M. Foster: Je me demande également si nous devrions
entendre les représentants du ministére de I’Agriculture et de
’Alimentation de I’Ontario.

Le président: Est-ce qu’ils ont demandé a comparaitre?

M. Foster: Nous voulons leur parler. Tout ce qui doit étre
fait sera fait par les uns et par les autres, n’est-ce pas—ou est-
ce que ce sera le gouvernement fédéral seulement qui s’en
chargera?

Le président: Je ne suis pas en mesure de vous répondre.
Monsieur Bradley . . .

M. Foster: Nous voulons les rencontrer pour savoir exacte-
ment ce qu’ils font car si nous rencontrons ensuite les agricul-
teurs nous aurons une meilleure idée, un meilleur tableau de la
situation.

M. Bradley: On discute beaucoup présentement de cette
question, pour essayer d’obtenir la coopération des provinces
dans bien des domaines, comme par exemple ce fut le cas pour
le concentré de tomate.

Le président: Je peux vous dire que nous avons dans nos
dossiers une lettre du ministére du Québec, je crois, nous
disant qu’il préfére discuter avec I'organisation gouvernemen-
tale pour trouver la solution qui lui convient plutdt que de
venir discuter avec le comité. Je paraphrase un peu, mais cette
lettre vient du Québec, n’est-ce pas?

Le greffier: Oui.
Le président: Est-ce que 'Ontario a répondu 4 ce sujet?
Le greffier: Je ne me souviens pas qu’il I'ait fait.

Le président: Le ministére de I'Agriculture et de I’Alimenta-
tion de 1'Ontario ne I'a pas fait, mais nous avons regu une
réponse de I'Office de commercialisation du tabac jaune de
I’Ontario.

M. Foster: Avec qui le Gouvernement du Québec désire-t-il
s’entretenir?

Le président: Avec I'organisation, il préfére discuter encore
du plan Tobacco Redux pour leur région, afin de consacrer de
facon générale toutes les énergies dans ce secteur. Rien ne
nous empéche de faire circuler une copie de cette lettre.

M. Bradley: Il y a seulement 123 producteurs de tabac au
Québec.

M. Foster: Oui. Mais nous pourrions rencontrer le gouverne-
ment de 'Ontario, soit le ministére de I'Industrie, soit celui de
I'Agriculture ... Il faudrait probablement commencer par
I’Agriculture, mais il y a peut-étre d’autres services.

M. 'Bradlgy: L’Office provincial de commercialisation des
Rrod}xlts agricoles octroie les licences a 1'Office de commercia-
lisation des producteurs de tabac séché et établit annuellement
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and are in negotiation annually over their crops and grant the
quota.

Mr. Foster: Yes. The mechanism of that operation will be
interesting background, but we want to know what the
government is going to do. Then we will have a better idea of
what the government here should do, if we know what is being
done, what is being planned. If it is inadequate, we can
recommend—

The Chairman: I see no problem with including officials of
the Ontario Ministry of Agriculture and Food as one of three
choices for the next meeting we might organize.

Mr. Foster: Sure.

The Chairman: Is that your proposal? I am fully in agree-
ment with that.

Is it agreed that we have one of them, OMAF, Employment
and Immigration, or DRIE, or all three, at succeeding
meetings, until we establish a future method of business?

Mr. Bradley: Under Employment and Immigration, I do not
think we should just say what they were doing under the Rural
Transition Program. I think we should just say “under their
mandate”; because we have just granted... for the Simcoe
area, which includes Delhi. So I think we could have them tell
us what they are willing to do in all this area. It is under their
mandate, rather than a specific program.

Mr. Foster: I am not sure DRIE is doing more there than in
most parts of the country. Maybe we could have them both in
one meeting, because I doubt that DRIE—

Mr. Bradley: Give them each half a meeting; 45 minutes
each.

Mr. Foster: I do not think it will take very long for DRIE.

The Chairman: They seem always to stick together, do they
not?

Mr. Foster: Yes, I would have them both, even if they are
both at the table at once. It is a federal government effort,
whatever there is. I do not think there is much under DRIE,
but—

Mr. Bradley: Are we within our mandate to ask the Minister
to come and talk to us about what is happening with the
national agency and what is happening with the Redux
Program negotiations, what is going on in this advance crop
payment—

Mr. Foster: Oh, sure.

Mr. Bradley: —and what his department is going to do to
help fund the research station—this sort of stuff? Even if it is

in camera, if he is afraid some of the stuff he is going to give
us is—

[Translation]

par voie de négociations quelles seront les récoltes et les
quotas.

M. Foster: Oui. Il sera intéressant de voir comment cela
fonctionne, mais nous voulons savoir ce que fera le gouverne-
ment. Si nous savons ce qu'’il fait et ce qu’il entend faire, nous
aurons une meilleure idée de ce que le gouvernement ici
devrait prendre comme mesures. Si cela ne suffit pas, nous
pouvons recommander . . .

Le président: Je ne vois par pourquoi les hauts fonctionnai-
res du ministére ontarien de I’Agriculture et de I’alimentation
ne feraient pas partie des trois groupes de témoins parmi
lesquels nous aurons 4 choisir pour notre prochaine réunion.

M. Foster: Pourquoi pas.

Le président: Vous en faites la proposition? Vous avez tout
mon appui.

Est-il convenu qu’a notre prochaine réunion nous rencon-
tions I'un des groupes suivants: le ministére ontarien de
I’Agriculture et de I’Alimentation, Emploi et Immigration, le
MEIR, quitte 4 les rencontrer tous les trois séparément lors de
réunions subséquentes, jusqu’a ce que nous trouvions une autre
fagon de procéder?

M. Bradley: Pour ce qui est d’Emploi et Immigration, il ne
faudrait pas simplement lui demander ce qu'il a fait dans le
cadre du programme de transition rurale. Il faudrait lui
demander ce qu’il a fait aux termes de son mandat, parce que
nous venons tout juste d’accorder ... a la région de Simcoe,
qui comprend notamment Delhi. Je pense qu’il faudrait leur
demander 4 tous ce qu’ils ont I'intention de faire dans cette
région. Il faut parler de leur mandat plutét que d’un pro-
gramme particulier.

M. Foster: Je ne suis pas sir que le MEIR en fasse plus 1a
qu’ailleurs. Nous pourrions peut-étre les inviter tous les deux a
la méme réunion, car je doute que le MEIR . . .

M. Bradley: Qu’on leur accorde une demi-heure ou 45
minutes chacun.

M. Foster: Je ne crois pas que le MEIR en ait pour trés
longtemps.

Le président: Est-ce qu'ils ne se soutiennent pas toujours
mutuellement?

M. Foster: Oui, j’aimerais les rencontrer tous les deux,
méme si c’est 4 la méme réunion. C’est quand méme un effort
du gouvernement fédéral. Je ne crois pas que le MEIR y soit
pour grand-chose, mais . . .

M. Bradley: Notre mandat nous autorise-t-il a inviter le
ministre a4 venir nous parler de I'agence nationale et des
négociations relatives au programme Redux, du paiement
anticipé des récoltes . . .

M. Foster: Bien siir.

M. Bradley: ... et des intentions de son ministére concer-
nant le financement du centre de recherche, etc.? Méme s’il
fallait se réunir a huis clos pour que le ministre se sente plus a
laise . ..
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Mr. Foster: Yes, I think we should, because there are some
areas of policy there such that if you get senior officials, they
are not going to want to speak about them. But the Minister
can speak about policy.

The Chairman: Is it the wish of the committee that we
inquire of the Minister if he is able to appear before—

Mr. Foster: I think we should.

You are talking about the Minister of Agriculture, or the
Minister of Finance?

Mr. Bradley: Yes, Agriculture. The Minister of Finance just
provides the money; the Minister of Agriculture develops
programs—

Mr. Foster: 1 think we should try for the Minister 'of
Agriculture here, or the Minister of Agriculture or senior

officials of Ontario, and then Employment and Immigration
and DRIE together.

The Chairman: Is that agreed for immediate future busi-
ness?

Mr. Foster: I think the three meetings between now and the
middle of December, when we are probably going to wind up
around here . .. that is pretty good. We have a couple of other

bills, have we not? We have supplementary estimates, we have
Bill C-12.

Mr. Althouse: We have supplementary estimates.

The Chairman: There is not that much this year anyway in
our area.

I think we have the immediate future business in hand. I
would like to go on, then, to travel. In the previous incarnation
of this committee we talked about travel to Delhi to witness
tobacco growing facilities, curing facilities, sales facilities, and
to speak to interested people; into the area near Montreal and
Quebec, and into P.E.L., probably in Charlottetown. Is it still

the feeling of the committee that this should be what we would
do? I think that is agreed.
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I think that is agreed. What do we need to do today, beyond
that agreement? Is this something we can leave in your hands
to develop?

The Clerk: The plans were that there be a two-day visit to
southern Ontario, and a one-day visit in Quebec, in the Joliette
area, or in the Longueuil area, whichever UPA preferred, and
a one-day visit to Prince Edward Island. It has been suggested
to me by one of the research officers that a two-day visit to
southern Ontario might not be sufficient, and we might want
to reconsider that. There might be a number of people who
would like to appear before the committee at that time, in
which case we might want to stay up to four days.

Mr. Bradley: It depends what kind of meeting you are going
to hold. If you are going to hold open meetings, book in for a
couple of weeks. If you are going to have representations from
groups and such things, yes, it is not that bad. But I think we
should also go to the research station in Delhi. I think we

[Traduction]

M. Foster: Oui, je pense que c’est une bonne idée d’inviter le
ministre, parce que les hauts fonctionnaires ne sont pas

N

toujours préts a parler de certaines questions de politique.
Mais le ministre, lui, peut en parler.

Le président: Le Comité veut-il que nous demandions si le
ministre peut comparaitre devant . . .

M. Foster: Je crois que oui.

Vous parlez du ministre de I’Agriculture ou des Finances?

M. Bradley: De I’Agriculture. Le ministre des Finances ne
fait qu’avancer les fonds; le ministre de I’Agriculture établit les
programmes . . .

M. Foster: Nous devrions donc inviter le ministre fédéral de
’Agriculture, ou le ministre ontarien de I’Agriculture ou ses
hauts fonctionnaires, puis Emploi et Immigration et le MEIR
ensemble.

Le président: C’est d’accord?

M. Foster: Pour les trois réunions d’ici 4 la mi-décembre ou
nous nous arréterons probablement, c’est bon. Par ailleurs,
nous avons quelques projets de loi, n’est-ce pas? Nous avons
aussi les budgets supplémentaires et le projet de loi C-12.

M. Althouse: Nous avons un budget supplémentaire.

Le président: 1l n’y a pas grand-chose pour nous cette année.

Je pense que nous avons réglé la question de nos travaux
futurs. Passons maintenant aux voyages. A la derniére session,
le Comité avait parlé de se rendre & Delhi pour y voir les
fermes de tabac, les sécheries, les services de vente et pour
parler aux producteurs et autres intervenants; il avait été
question d’aller prés de Montréal et de Québec, puis 4 I'le-du-
Prince-Edouard, probablement & Charlottetown. Pensez-vous
que C’est toujours ce que nous devrions faire? Je crois que c’est
d’accord.

Je pense que C’est convenu. Y a-t-il autre chose i faire

aujourd’hui pour cela? Est-ce qu’on peut vous laisser cela entre
les mains?

Le greffier: Les plans étaient de passer deux jours dans le
sud de I’Ontario et une journée au Québec, soit dans la région
de Joliette, soit dans la région de Longueuil, selon la préfé-
rence de I'UPA, et une journée a I'lle-du-Prince-Edouard.
L’un des attachés de recherche m’a dit qu’une visite de deux
jours dans le sud de I'Ontario risque de ne pas suffire; nous
voudrons peut-étre y repenser. Avec le nombre de personnes
qui  souhaiteraient comparaitre devant le Comité, nous
pourrions rester la quatre jours.

M. Bradley: Cela dépend du genre de réunion. Si ce sont des
audiences publiques, aussi bien réserver quelques semaines. Si
Cest pour entendre des groupes et organismes, ce n’est pas si
mal. Mais il faudrait aussi visiter le centre de recherche de
Delhi. Il faudrait aller 4 I'Office de commercialisation. Il
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should go to the marketing agency. I think we should meet
with the board and also go out to some farms, to see what is
happening there.

I think we should go to Macdonald Lea; we should see a
couple of the manufactures down there. We want to see their
operations, to hear from all them. If possible, we should have
hearings in Simcoe or Delhi. It depends, because unless it is
structured, you are looking at 2,600 representations.

The Chairman: You are looking at 2,600 individual
representations. Did you say we should go down there for three
years?

I suspect that four days, even three days, at one time, would
be too much to call upon anybody to do. Two days would
probably be a maximum.

Mr. Bradley: Perhaps we could set up a couple of farms. We
would then ask the board to arrange to have some of the local
farmers within the area come to the farm. We would see what
a tobacco farm really looks like, what its costs are, etc. Then
we could sit down in the barn and talk to 15 or 20 of the local
farmers from around this farm. That might circumvent a lot of
formal hearings.

The Chairman: I think I have the agreement, certainly from
the opposition members, that more than two days at one time
is a pretty impractical solution for you, is it not, for Ontario
anyway.

Mr. Foster: What are we trying to do? We are trying to
hear some suggestions, but I cannot believe hearing from more
than representative groups can be valuable. It seems to me you
should have a day to kind of look at the marketing system,
look at the board system, and then maybe a good part of a day
for some hearings.

Mr. Bradley: You would have hearings. For example, the
ginseng association would like to come to make representation,
and so would the apple growers association and the asparagus
growers association.

Mr. Foster: That would be 12 or 15 briefs. It tends to get
repetitious.

Mr. Bradley: It does. They all have totally different crops
and totally different problems.

Mr. Foster: Perhaps we could ask them to start their
submissions in the morning, rather than starting at 7 p.m. or 8
p.m.

The Chairman: I suggest then that we should think about
going to Ontario for two days. We should try to cushion
enough room into our budget for an additional day, if we
choose to do so, at a different time, and then two days towards
the east. Can we ask the clerk to develop a budget on that
basis?

Some hon. members: Agreed.

Mr. Foster: In Prince Edward Island you can probably have
a good full morning of hearings and meetings.

[Translation]

faudrait rencontrer I'Office et visiter quelques fermes pour voir
ce qui se passe.

Il faudrait aller & Macdonald Lea, y voir quelques manufac-
turiers. Il faudrait visiter les installations et voir tout le monde.
Il faudrait aussi tenir des audiences & Simcoe ou Delhi, si
possible. Cela dépend, mais 4 moins d’&tre bien structuré, cela
peut représenter 2,600 mémoires.

Le preésident: Vous dites 2,600 exposés. Il va falloir étre 1a
trois ans.

Pour moi, quatre jours, méme trois, dans le méme voyage,
c’est assez. Le maximum devrait étre probablement de deux
jours.

M. Bradley: Nous pourrions peut-étre nous organiser pour
visiter quelques fermes. Ensuite, nous pourrions demander a
I'Office d’inviter quelques producteurs locaux & venir nous y
rencontrer. Nous pourrions voir de quoi une ferme de tabac a
vraiment 'air, ce que ¢a coiite, etc. Ensuite, nous pourrions
nous asseoir dans la grange et discuter avec 15 ou 20 produc-
teurs locaux. Cela nous éviterait beaucoup d’audiences
officielles.

Le président: Je pense qu'on est d’accord, du coté de
'opposition du moins, pour dire que plus de deux jours 4 la fois
C’est peu pratique, n’est-ce pas, pour I’Ontario a tout le moins.

M. Foster: Quel est notre but? Nous voulons entendre des
suggestions, mais je ne crois qu'il soit utile de consulter des
groupes autres que ceux qui sont représentatifs. A mon avis, il
faudrait prendre une journée pour étudier le régime de
commercialisation, voir I'Office, et consacrer une autre journée
aux audiences.

M. Bradley: Vous voudriez des audiences. L’Association des
producteurs de ginseng, les apiculteurs et les producteurs
d’asperges voudraient présenter un mémoire.

M. Foster: Cela voudrait dire 12 ou 15 mémoires. C’est
souvent répétitif.

M. Bradley: C’est vrai. Les récoltes sont toutes différentes,
et les problémes aussi.

M. Foster: Nous pourrions peut-étre les rencontrer le matin,
plutdt que le soir & 19 heures ou 20 heures.

Le président: Je vous suggére de penser 4 un voyage de deux
jours en Ontario. Il faudrait prévoir des fonds dans notre
budget pour une journée additionnelle, s’il le faut, 4 un autre
moment, et deux jours dans l'est. On demande au greffier
d’établir un budget pour cela?

Des voix: D’accord.

M. Foster: A I'lle-du-Prince-Edouard, on peut probable-
ment passer toute une matinée a tenir des audiences et des
réunions.
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Mr. Bradley: We could fly down in the morning and have
meetings.

Mr. Althouse: We have an additional problem there,
because everything is perhaps smaller than the Ontario
situation. However, we do have three provinces that may be
submitting there. Nobody has very many producers. New
Brunswick and Nova Scotia each produce a bit of tobacco, and
each will have its own provincial way of looking at it. We are
probably going to have to be prepared to hear all of them. So
let me just caution you on this.

Mr. Bradley: One of the major problems is that the reduc-
tion in share growers, the reduction in seasonal workers, and
the reduction in poundage is all in Ontario. There have not
been cutbacks in the other provinces, so all the 40 million

pounds, the reduction from 170 million to 130 million, was
grown in Ontario this year.
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Mr. Althouse: Well, that is not what you will hear from the
Maritime growers.

Mr. Bradley: I know.
Mr. Althouse: I was just down there.

Mr. Bradley: You see, they sell at the barn gate—

Mr. Althouse: They claim a percentage cut, just like
everybody else.

Mr. Bradley: Well, they sell at the barn gate. They have no
{narketing system. They do not have any quota system so there
1s no cut as such. They just sell whatever the manufacturers
will buy at the barn gate, and, of the poundage grown in

Canada over the last two years, the only reductions have been
in Ontario.

The Chairman: Gentlemen, I think likely we have general
agreement on our travel plans and the clerk is able to develop a
budget from that and will be coming back to us.

We did invite last year the Canadian Tobacco Manufactur-
ers Council. They are unable to present a brief, and might I
suggest that they could be another body, with the three, that
we could invite, because I do not necessarily feel that every-
body is going to be available to come to us right away anyway
and we are looking for business we can do soon. Is it reason-
able that we include the Canadian Tobacco Manufacturers
Council, along with the other three we had?

Mr. Foster: Are we only studying the growing of tobacco?
In other words, are we going to get involved with the group
who are concerned with the health effects and so on?

The Chairman: Mr. Foster, I had long discussions with
people in that regard and they feel they have input from the
standpoint of costs and revenue that could be available to help
the farmers. From that standpoint I thought we should hear
from them in a brief period of time, perhaps the health group
at one meeting, all of them together. So I am trying to direct

[Traduction]

M. Bradley: Nous pourrions nous rendre la-bas le matin et
tenir des réunions.

M. Althouse: Il y a un autre probléme la-bas, parce que tout
se fait 4 plus petite échelle qu’en Ontario. Cependant, il y a
trois provinces qui peuvent présenter des mémoires. Aucune
d’elles n’a beaucoup de producteurs. Le Nouveau-Brunswick et
la Nouvelle-Ecosse produisent un peu de tabac, et chaque
province a sa fagon de voir les choses. Il faudrait étre préts a

rencontrer les trois provinces. Je tenais simplement a vous le
signaler. :

M. Bradley: L’'un des gros problémes est que c’est en
Ontario qu’il y a diminution du nombre d’agriculteurs se
partageant la production, baisse du nombre de travailleurs
saisonniers, et réduction de la production. Il n’y a pas eu de
réduction dans les autres provinces; la totalité des 40 millions
de livres de tabac, c’est-a-dire 170 millions moins 130 millions,
a donc été cultivée en Ontario cette année.

M. Althouse: Ce n’est pas ce que les producteurs des
Maritimes vous diront.

M. Bradley: Je sais.
M. Althouse: J’en arrive justement.

M. Bradley: Voyez-vous, ils vendent leurs produits d la
sortie de la ferme . . .

M. Althouse: Ils demandent un pourcentage, comme tout le
monde.

M. Bradley: Mais ils vendent leurs produits 4 la sortie de la
ferme. Ils n’ont pas de régime de commercialisation. Ils n’ont
pas de quotas, donc pas de part comme telle. Ils vendent
simplement ce que les manufacturiers sont préts a acheter, et
ces deux derniéres années, les seules réductions de la produc-
tion de tabac se sont faites en Ontario.

Le président: Messieurs, je pense qu’il y a consensus sur nos

plans de voyage, et le greffier va établir un budget qu'il nous
présentera plus tard.

L’an dernier, nous avions invité le Conseil canadien du
tabac. Il ne peut nous présenter un mémoire, mais je suggére-
rais que nous I'ajoutions 4 la liste des trois autres témoins que
nous voulons inviter, étant donné que tout le monde ne pourra
pas nécessairement venir nous rencontrer tout de suite, et nous
cherchons quand méme du travail pour Iavenir immédiat.
Pensez-vous qu’il soit raisonnable d’ajouter le Conseil canadien
du tabac aux trois autres groupes que nous avions?

M. Foster: Allons-nous nous pencher seulement sur la
C’l.lltu’l'e du tabac, ou allons-nous rencontrer les groupes qui
s'intéressent aux effets du tabac sur la santé, notamment?

Le président: Monsieur Foster, j’ai eu de longues discussions
avec des gens a ce propos, et ils estiment avoir des renseigne-
ments qui pourraient étre utiles aux agriculteurs en ce qui
concerne les coiits et les revenus. J’ai donc pensé que nous
pourrions entendre tous les groupes qui s’intéressent a la santé
lors d’une méme réunion. Jessaie de limiter le débat 4 notre
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the interest to our mandate, but I think if we do not hear from
these they are going to be very vocal and publicly talk about—

Mr. Foster: That is what I was wondering about. If you are
going to have the tobacco companies here and they are going
to make a presentation, then I think you have to hear from the
other group.

Mr. Bradley: Except that the companies dictate what crop is
grown. They control the acreage and the poundage and the
economic factor.

The Chairman: Can we include the Canadian Tobacco
Manufacturers Council, then, as one of the four people Mr.
Hall can work at to come as witnesses shortly?

Okay.

Mr. Althouse: Do we have a list of the various anti-tobacco
groups that have submitted? I know there are several.

The Chairman: We have a list and I will circulate it and call
a meeting for future business in the House lobby some day and
get us in the position that we can make motions at a subse-
quent meeting.

Mr. Althouse: Perhaps the clerk could find out if there is a
possibility of hearing from them as a coalition or whether we
could hear them so we could do it at one or two meetings
rather than . ..

Mr. Foster: If we could sort of balance, juxtaposition, that
with the tobacco companies.

Mr. Althouse: We would hear the two sides back to back.

The Chairman: Okay. This may preclude hearing them
immediately, and we will take that into consideration.

Mr. Foster: Put it to them: look, we do not have time to hear
from everybody in the world on this issue so we are going to
have one day with the manufacturers and one day with the . ..

The Chairman: Okay.

I think we have come to the end unless you have other
comments, gentlemen, that you wish to bring up today.

Can we now adjourn this meeting to the call of the Chair?—
and I assume, Mr. Clerk, probably some time in the next two
weeks we will be hearing of that date. Is that agreed?

Some hon. members: Agreed.
The Chairman: Thank you very much.
This meeting stands adjourned.

[Translation]

mandat, mais si nous n’accueillons pas ces gens-la, ils vont
faire beaucoup de bruit . . .

M. Foster: C’est ce que je me demandais. Si nous invitons
les compagnies de tabac 4 présenter un mémoire, je pense que
nous devons inviter aussi les autres groupes.

M. Bradley: Sauf que ce sont les compagnies qui disent ce
qu’il faut cultiver. Ce sont elles qui déterminent la superficie
des cultures, la production et le facteur économique.

Le président: Pouvons-nous demander 2 M. Hall de joindre
le Conseil canadien du tabac en tant que 'un des quatre
groupes que nous voulons rencontrer prochainement?

Trés bien.

M. Althouse: Avons-nous une liste des divers groupes anti-
tabac qui ont envoyé des mémoires? Je sais qu'il y en a
plusieurs.

Le président: Nous avons une liste que je ferai distribuer, et
je convoquerai une réunion pour discuter de nos travaux
futurs, un de ces jours dans le foyer de la Chambre, pour que
nous puissions adopter des motions lors de notre prochaine
réunion.

M. Althouse: Le greffier pourrait voir s’il ne serait pas
possible que ces groupes comparaissent collectivement, ou faire
en sorte que nous puissions les rencontrer lors d’une ou deux
réunions, plutét que . . .

M. Foster: Si nous pouvions équilibrer cela avec les compa-
gnies de tabac.

M. Althouse: Nous pourrions entendre les deux points de
vue, I'un 4 la suite de I'autre.

Le président: Bon. Mais cela nous empéchera peut-étre de
les rencontrer immédiatement, et nous devrons prendre cela en
considération.

M. Foster: On n’a qu’a leur expliquer la situation: leur dire
que nous n’avons pas le temps de rencontrer tout le monde et
que nous consacrerons une journée aux compagnies et une
autre .. .

Le président: Trés bien.

Je pense que nous avons terminé, & moins que vous ayez
d’autres commentaires.

La séance est levée jusqu’d nouvelle convocation du prési-
dent? Et je présume, monsieur le greffier, que nous aurons fixé
la date de la prochaine réunion d’ici deux semaines. D’accord?

Des voix: D’accord.
Le président: Merci beaucoup.
La séance est levée.

Thursday, December 11, 1986
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The Chairman: Order, please.

Le jeudi 11 décembre 1986

Le président: A Pordre, s’il vous plait.
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Dr. Bradley will join us, I am sure, as quickly as he can get
to the front.

It is a pleasure for us this morning in the agricultural
subcommittee to hear for the first time from the departments
about the rural transition plan.

I am pleased this morning to welcome, from the Employ-
ment and Immigration Commission, Cal Stotyn, and, from the
Department of Agriculture, Bob Ray. I understand that Mr.

Stotyn and Mr. Ray have a lead-off dissertation, and then we
will go into the questions.

Mr. Ray.

Mr. Robert G. Ray (Director, Special Programs Division,
Department of Agriculture): Thank you very much.

I would like just to give you a brief background.

I am sure you are all aware of it anyway, but the Canadian
Rural Transition Program was part of a number of programs
included in the February 26 budget by Mr. Wilson that
respected agriculture. The others included were the Farm Debt
Review Act, the Tobacco Transition Program, and the
Commodity-Based Mortgage Loans. There was also provision
for FCC to have what was referred to as a Farm Debt Review
Fund, which was to assist the FCC clients and the FCC in
arrangements that were being arrived at, or being tried to be
arrived at, through the Farm Debt Review Board structure
which is in each province.

So I think it is important that we not look at the CRTP
program in isolation. It is part and parcel of a number of
activities put in place over the last eight months to deal with a
number of problems, particularly aimed at the financial
situation we currently find ourselves in in agriculture.

Having said that, the main purpose or main objective of the
Canadian Rural Transition Program is to help those farmers
who have decided to leave farming—albeit it might be
vqluntary_because of the recognition of financial difficulties; it
might be involuntary because of somebody else’s recognition of
the financial difficulties. It is to provide assistance to those
individuals and their families to transit or reorient their way of

life to a new vocation or a new location in terms of what they
can do.

The type of assistance provided through the program is to
some extent very similar to that already provided by Canada
Employment and Immigration in a number of other areas, but
for which in the past agricultural farmers have not been
eligible, generally speaking because they are self-employed,
and there are a number of other reasons. But, basically, they
were not eligible for the standard programming that was put in
place.

The program itself is $46.6 million. It is a two-year pro-
gram, as were the others in the budget. They were all tagged
for two years. The CRTP was introduced in early September
basically, and we would see it as running until two years from
September, barring the need for an ongoing program, or an

[Traduction]

Je suis convaincu que M. Bradley viendra prendre sa place
dés qu’il le pourra.

Le Sous-comité de I’agriculture est heureux d’avoir I'occa-
sion, pour la premiére fois, d’accueillir des représentants des
ministéres qui viennent lui parler du Programme de réorienta-
tion des agriculteurs.

Jaccueille donc avec plaisir ce matin, M. Cal Stotyn, de la
Commission de I’emploi et de I'immigration et M. Bob Ray, du
ministére de ’Agriculture. Aprés leur déclaration liminaire,
nous passerons a la période des questions.

Monsieur Ray.

M. Robert G. Ray (directeur, Division des programmes
spéciaux, ministére de PAgriculture): Merci beaucoup.

Je vais vous tracer un bref historique du programme.

Comme vous le savez tous sans aucun doute, le Programme
canadien de réorientation des agriculteurs fait partie d’une
série de mesures agricoles spéciales annoncées par M. Wilson
dans son budget du 26 février. Parmi les autres mesures alors
annoncées, on retrouve la Loi sur ’examen de ’endettement
agricole, le Programme visant 4 aider les producteurs de tabac
a diversifier leurs cultures et les hypothéques basées sur le prix
des produits agricoles. Le ministre a également annoncé la
création d’un fonds relatif & I'’examen de I’endettement
agricole pour permettre 4 la SCA d’aider ses clients et de
donner suite aux arrangements, conclus par I'intermédiaire,
des bureaux d’examen de I'endettement agricole qui existent
dans chaque province.

A mon avis, il est important de ne pas étudier le PCRA
séparément; en effet, il fait partie d’une série de mesures prises
au cours des huit derniers mois pour régler toute une gamme
de problémes, tout particuliérement la situation financiére
précaire du secteur agricole.

Cela dit, le principal objectif du Programme canadien de
réorientation des agriculteurs est d’aider ceux qui ont décidé
d’abandonner I'agriculture; ils peuvent avoir pris cette décision
de leur propre gré, étant conscients des problémes financiers
qu’ils éprouvent, ou des tiers les ont peut-étre forcés a prendre
conscience des problémes financiers qu'ils éprouvent. Ce

programme aide ces agriculteurs et leurs familles 4 s’orienter
vers une nouvelle profession et une nouvelle vie.

Ce programme offre des services semblables 4 ceux qu’offre
Emploi et Immigration Canada dans d’autres secteurs;
cependant, par le passé, les agriculteurs n’étaient pas admissi-
bles aux programmes de la CEIC parce qu'ils travaillaient &

leur propre compte et pour d’autres raisons. Ils n’étaient donc
pas admissibles aux programmes offerts.

. Le PCRA a un budget de 46,6 millions de dollars; il s’agit
d’un programme échelonné sur deux ans, tout comme les
autres programmes annoncés au méme moment. Le PCRA a
€té lancé officiellement au début du mois de septembre, et il
devrait prendre fin dans deux ans au mois de septembre, a
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extension of the program, or indeed adjustments to the
program. The CRTP program, along with the other programs,
is being reviewed prior to April 1, 1987. It is a new type of
program for us, particularly in Agriculture Canada. The Farm
Debt Review Boards and the Rural Transition Program are
not the types of programs that we have been involved with, to
any large extent—at least in the recent past. What we are
doing is reviewing both of them, in terms of the method of
delivering those functions and their effectiveness. Obviously,
one deals with arrangements between creditors and farmers;
the other deals with what is happening with these people who
are going through the transition program.
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That is basically all I would propose to say. I think Cal will
give some more details on the CRTP program and an actual
progress report, perhaps, as to what is happening in the various
regions.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ray.

Mr. Cal Stotyn (Manager, Canadian Rural Transition
Program, Department of Employment and Immigration): Mr.
Chairman, I am pleased to be here this morning to address this
committee.

Just by way of introduction, so you will know who I am, I
started on February 27, 1986 with the program. My job at that
time was co-ordinator of the interdepartmental group that
designed and developed the program. The group consisted of
Agriculture Canada, Employment and Immigration, and the
Farm Credit Corporation. We did have some discussions with
the Canadian Federation of Agriculture and the provinces
during the period that we were developing the program. Since
September 10, when the program was announced by the two
Ministers, I have been the national manager of the program,
responsible for implementing the program and its operations.

Mr. Hall just circulated a copy of our weekly report on the
applications that have been submitted. If you would like to
look at that report, on the righthand column it shows the totals
that we have received up to the end of last week, December 5.
We have had 572 applications thus far. We have accepted 328;
we have refused 107. We still need more information from the
applicants on about 137 applications before we can decide
whether or not they meet the criteria.

In terms of what we thought we might be receiving in
inquiries and applications about the program during its first
few months, this is not as high as we anticipated. We feel one
of the reasons for that is that the Farm Debt Review Board is
in place and many farmers, or many lenders, are having cases
reviewed at the Farm Debt Review Board. Those cases have
not come through the system as yet.

As I understand it, the committee has a particular interest in
the area of southwestern Ontario and the tobacco industry. I
have just received some specific information that has to do
with the tobacco industry. Four Canada Employment Centres
in southwestern Ontario have received inquiries or applications
from tobacco growers or share growers: the Canada Employ-

[Translation]

moins qu’on ne décide d’en faire un programme permanent, de
le prolonger ou de le modifier. Le PCRA, comme les autres
programmes, fera I’objet d’'un examen d’ici le 1 avril 1987.
C’est un genre de programme qu’Agriculture Canada n’a
jamais offert. Les bureaux d’examen de I’endettement agricole
et le programme de réorientation des agriculteurs ne sont pas
le genre de programmes auxquels nous avons participé au
cours des derniéres années. Nous examinerons ces deux
programmes, leur fonctionnement et leur efficacité. L'un porte
sur les arrangements financiers entre les agriculteurs et leurs
créanciers et I'autre sur ce qui arrive 4 ceux qui participent
aux programmes de réorientation.

Cest tout ce que j'ai 4 dire. Je crois que Cal vous donnera
de plus amples détails sur le PCRA et vous mettra au fait de
ce qui se déroule dans les diverses régions.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Ray.

M. Cal Stotyn (directeur, Programme canadien de réorien-
tation des agriculteurs, ministére de ’Emploi et de PImmigra-
tion): Monsieur le président, je suis heureux de comparaitre
devant votre comité ce matin.

Je désire tout d’abord vous dire que je m’occupe de ce
programme depuis le 27 février 1986, soit depuis sa création.
Jétais alors coordonnateur du groupe interministériel respon-
sable de la conception et de la création du programme. Ce
groupe comportait des représentants d’Agriculture Canada, du
ministére de I'Emploi et de I'Immigration et de la Société du
crédit agricole. Lors de ces travaux, nous avons consulté la
Fédération canadienne de I'agriculture et les provinces. Depuis
le 10 septembre, date 4 laquelle le programme a été annoncé
par les deux ministres, je suis le directeur national du pro-
gramme, responsable de sa mise en oeuvre et de son fonction-
nement.

M. Hall vient de distribuer une copie de notre rapport
hedbomadaire sur les demandes soumises. La colonne de droite
représente le total cumulatif des demandes soumises jusqu’a la
semaine derniére, le 5 décembre. Nous avons donc regu 572
demandes jusqu'a présent. Nous en avons approuvé 328, et
rejeté 107. De plus, 137 demandes sont en attente, car nous
devons obtenir de plus amples renseignements des requérants
avant de déterminer s’ils sont admissibles.

Nous n’avons pas regu, pendant les premiers mois d’exis-
tence du programme, autant de demandes et de demandes de
renseignement que nous ne ’avions prévu. A notre avis, cela
est dii en partie 4 I'existence des bureaux d’examen de
I’endettement agricole et au fait qu’ils étudient actuellement
les dossiers de bon nombre d’agriculteurs et de créanciers.

Je crois comprendre que votre comité s’intéresse tout
particuliérement au sud-ouest de ’Ontario et 4 la culture du
tabac. Je viens de recevoir des renseignements qui portent
justement sur cette industrie. Quatre centres d’emploi du
Canada du sud-ouest de I'Ontario ont répondu aux questions
ou ont regu des demandes des producteurs de tabac ou des
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ment Centres in London, Simcoe, St. Thomas and Tillsonburg.
In total, those four offices have received 24 applications from
people who grow tobacco. Fourteen are growers and ten are
share growers. Those four offices, in total, from all farmers,
have had 41 applications. So about 60% of the applications in
that tobacco growing area have been from tobacco growers.
We have accepted 19 of the 24 applications received. Two
were rejected, and we are still waiting for additional informa-
tion on the other three.

The local Canada Employment Centres have had quite a bit
of contact with the tobacco industry since this program was
introduced. There are a couple of things in here that I think
will be of interest to the committee. There was a meeting with
the Ontario Tobacco Flue-Cured Growers’ Marketing Board
on September 10—the same day that the Ministers announced
the program. I do not know if that really shows that we are on
top of things. It just happened to be a coincidence. The
regional office did have discussions with the marketing board
about the Rural Transition Program and the other programs

and services that our department has, and how they might
apply to the tobacco industry.

There is a group in southwestern Ontario called the Tobacco
Area Industrial Strategy Study Committee. The counties of
Brant, Haldimand, Norfolk, Oxford, and Elgin have each
placed a warden and a councillor on this study committee.
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The objective of the committee is to document the specific
problems and the scope of the problems caused by the decline
in the tobacco industry and to devise a strategy to create
opportunities to overcome these problems. To me, that
objective seems very close to what I think the members are
looking to do with respect to the tobacco industry.

At the invitation of this study committee, our department—
both the regional office in Toronto and our local Canada
Employment Centre managers—attended five meetings
between October 29 and November 27 in some small com-
munities, and approximately 300 farmers attended those five
sessions. The provincial Department of Agriculture, our
department, and the federal Department of Agriculture made
presentations to tobacco farmers on our programs and services.

So there has been a fairly consistent effort on the part of
Employment and Immigration to get the message about the
program—not just our Rural Transition Program, but the
other things we do—to the tobacco growers.

With those brief comments, I would be prepared to entertain
any questions.

The Chairman: Thank you, sir. I am sure you will get a lot
of questions in different directions.

Gentlemen, what I propose is that, unless we see a reason to
break in... If there is a sharp point coming through, Dr.
Foster, on which somebody else may wish to build, I am going
to allow that. But we will work with Dr. Foster in the begin-
ning, Dr. Bradley second, and Mr. Althouse third. Dr. Foster.

[Traduction]

métayers; il s’agit des centres d’emploi du Canada de London,
de Simcoe, de St-Thomas et de Tillsonburg. Ces quatre centres
ont regu, en tout, 24 demandes de personnes qui cultivent le
tabac, dont 14 producteurs et 10 métayers. Ces quatre centres
ont regu en tout 41 demandes d’agriculteurs. Ainsi, 60 p. 100
de demandes regues dans cette région de culture du tabac
proviennent de producteurs de tabac. Nous avons approuvé 19
des 24 demandes soumises. Deux demandes ont été rejetées et
nous attendons des renseignements complémentaires avant de
prendre une décision a I’égard des trois autres.

Les centres d’emploi du Canada ont eu beaucoup d’échanges
avec les représentants de I'industrie du tabac depuis la création
du programme. J'aimerais vous faire part de quelques petits
détails qui vous intéresseront probablement. L’Office de
commercialisation du tabac jaune de I’Ontario s’est réuni le 10
septembre, le jour méme ou les ministres ont annoncé la mise
en oeuvre du programme. Je ne sais pas si cela prouve que
nous sommes maitres de la situation; c’est simplement une
coincidence. Les employés du bureau régional ont discuté avec
'Office de commercialisation, du programme de réorientation
des agriculteurs, des autres programmes et services offerts par
le ministére et de la facon dont I'industrie du tabac pourrait
s’en prévaloir.

Il existe dans le sud-ouest de I'Ontario un groupe appelé le
Tobacco Area Industrial Strategy Committee. Les comtés de
Brant, Haldimand, Norfolk, Oxford et Elgin sont représentés
au sein de ce comité d’étude par un directeur et un conseiller.

Ce comité a été constitué afin de déterminer la nature et la
portée des problémes entrainés par le déclin de I'industrie du
tabac et d’élaborer une stratégie visant 4 créer des perspectives
afin de surmonter ces problémes. A mon avis, cet objectif est
semblable & ce que vous cherchez a faire pour aider I’industrie
du tabac.

Sur I'invitation de ce comité d’étude, notre ministére—notre
bureau régional de Toronto et nos directeurs régionaux de
centres d’emploi du Canada—a participé a cinq réunions entre
le 29 octobre et le 27 novembre dans certaines petites collecti-
vités, réunions auxquelles ont assisté environ 300 agriculteurs.
Le ministére provincial de I'agriculture, notre ministére, et le
ministére fédéral de I’Agriculture ont présenté aux producteurs
de tabac des exposés sur les programmes et services offerts.

Ainsi, le ministére de I’Emploi et de I'Immigration a
vraiment cherché a faire connaitre le programme—pas
simplement le programme de réorientation des agriculteurs
mais aussi les autres services—aux producteurs de tabac.

Cela dit, je suis maintenant disposé 4 répondre aux ques-
tions.

'Le pres\ident: Merci. Je suis convaincu que vous aurez i
répondre a toutes sortes de questions.

Messieurs,'ﬁ moins qu’il ne soit nécessaire d’interrompre la
personne qui parle, je propose... Les députés pourront
intervenir s'ils veulent poser une question complémentaire ou
demander de plus amples renseignements. Le premier interve-
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Mr. Foster: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

I wonder if you could describe exactly how the Canadian
Rural Transition Program works. I am interested, from the
human point of view, in just what triggers it and how it works.
We have seen the outline of the program, and it provides
$1,600, I think, in the first month and then a declining
amount. But as I understand it, the program requires that you
have to file with the department a document showing that you
have gone through bankruptcy or your bankruptcy discharge
paper. We are dealing with a much different case, where a
person is losing his or her farm, which probably includes the
home, compared with the factory worker, who is perhaps
renting a house and goes to pick up welfare.

Is the program adequate where a person has just gotten his
bankruptcy paper, and he has to file that, find a place to rent,
find a job, and take retraining? It seems to me we are dealing
with two categories of people here. One is a person who has
probably been operating a $500,000 farm, if you take the
average farm in Ontario, and perhaps for tobacco farmers it is
much larger. Could you walk us through the steps and give us
an impression of whether or not the program is adequate to
cope with the situation you are finding?

The only other question I might ask in summarizing the
situation—how the program works and how it provides
assistance—is this. One of the people who contacted me about
the program ... This was not a tobacco farmer, but another
individual who wanted to take a retraining program. The
program he wanted to take—I think it operated over three or
four weeks—was going to cost $2,500, and the department
said, look, we will give you only $1,500; you go and borrow the
other $1,000. Well, he had just been through bankruptcy. The
chances of getting the other $1,000 were really grim.

For the benefit of the committee, perhaps you could walk us
through some typical cases and tell us what you see as being
the recommendations you will be making in early 1987 as to
making the program adequate; or maybe it is adequate, from
the experience you have had. But I would be interested to
know your impression of it in the 328 cases that have been
received.
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Mr. Stotyn: Those are big questions. I could talk about that
for quite some time.

About how the program works, the point you have made is a
very important point, and we recognized it from the very
beginning; and that is that we are dealing with individuals who
have just come through a very difficult time. It is a very
emotional situation to have lost the family farm. In some cases
these may be century farms, where they have been in the

[Translation]

nant sera M. Foster qui sera suivi de M. Bradley et de M.
Althouse. Monsieur Foster.

M. Foster: Merci beaucoup, monsieur le président.

Pourriez-vous me décrire le fonctionnement du programme
de réorientation des agriculteurs? Je m’intéresse a I'angle
humain et j’aimerais connaitre les conditions d’admissibilité et
le fonctionnement du programme. Nous avons vu quels sont les
grands points du programme; nous savons qu’il assure aux
requérants une subvention de 1,600$ pour le premier mois et
par la suite des subventions moins élevées. J’ai cru comprendre
que les requérants doivent également remettre au ministére un
document qui indique qu’ils ont fait faillite ou leur quittance.
Ces agriculteurs se trouvent dans une situation tout a fait
spéciale puisque, lorsqu’ils perdent leur exploitation agricole,
ils perdent aussi probablement leur maison; cependant,
'ouvrier d’usine, qui loue probablement sa maison, peut lui
aller chercher son chéque d’assistance sociale.

Le programme offre-t-il une aide adéquate a celui qui vient
de faire faillite? Il doit présenter des documents a cet égard, se
trouver un logement, un emploi, et suivre des cours? A mon
avis, on parle de deux groupes trés différents. Dans le premier,
on retrouve une personne qui exploitait une ferme d’une valeur
de 500,0008—pour utiliser la valeur moyenne d’une exploita-
tion agricole en Ontario—et il se peut que la valeur des
exploitations agricoles des producteurs de tabac soit plus
grande. Pouvez-vous nous décrire chaque étape, car nous
voulons savoir si ce programme est adéquat compte tenu de la
situation dans laquelle se trouve ceux qui présentent une
demande.

Je n’aurai qu’une autre question a poser en ce qui a trait au
fonctionnement du programme. Un de ceux qui a communiqué
avec moi 4 cet égard . . . Il ne s’agissait pas d’un producteur de
tabac, mais d’une autre personne qui voulait suivre un cours.
Les frais de scolarité pour ce cours—ije crois qu’il devait durer
trois ou quatre semaines—s’élevaient 4 2,5008, et les représen-
tants du ministére lui ont dit qu’ils ne pouvaient lui offrir que
1,5008. IIs lui ont dit d’emprunter les 1,000$ qui lui man-
quaient. Cette personne venait de faire faillite et il était fort
peu probable qu’elle puisse emprunter ce montant.

Vous pourriez peut-étre nous décrire certains cas typiques,
et nous dire quelles recommandations, vous formulerez au
début de 1987 afin d’améliorer le programme et de le rendre
adéquat; d’aprés vous, est-il adéquat? De toute fagon, j’aime-
rais savoir ce que vous pensez maintenant du programme car
vous avez tout de méme accepté 328 demandes.

M. Stotyn: Quelle question! Je pourrais parler de ces choses
pendant bien longtemps.

Pour ce qui est du fonctionnement du programme, ce que
vous avez dit est trés important et nous en sommes conscients
depuis toujours. En effet, nous cherchons a aider des personnes
qui viennent de traverser une période trés pénible. Perdre la
ferme familiale peut étre déchirant. Dans certains cas, il peut
s’agir d’'une ferme que la famille posséde depuis un siécle. De
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family for some time. So working with Agriculture Canqda
and the Farm Credit Corporation and the provinces, we tried
to set the program up so it is as user-friendly as possible.

We have a variety of different ways that the program is
accessed by the client. It varies depending upon the province,
depending upon the role the provincial government has in
acting as a point of contact for the farmer.

What we have done is placed information about the program
in the hands of banks, the Farm Credit Corporation, credit
advisers, provincial extension officers, Canada Farm Labour
Pool offices, employment centres, that sort of thing—the
places where potential clients would obtain information about
the program and come into contact with people to whom they
could go to talk about their situation and get some indication
whether it is possible for them to be accepted on the program.

We have also worked out arrangements with the Farm Debt
Review Board, so any cases which are going through the board
process . . . if the conclusion is that the farm is not viable, the
Farm Debt Review Board chairperson is able to give informa-
tion to the farmer about the program, actually give the
application, and help the application process out.

In the case of the Farm Credit Corporation clients, Farm
Credit Corporation advisers do help the client to work through
the application form to determine which pieces of paper that
support the financial situation of the farm are to be included
with the application when it is sent to us. In the Province of
Quebec, for example, we have an arrangement with the Farm
Credit Corporation that they will do that with all clients.

In the Maritime provinces we have arrangements with the
provincial governments. They will act as the first point of
contact for all clients. We felt that was better because the
provincial departments of agriculture have much closer contact
with the farming community. We felt the comfort level the

client would have in dealing with a face they recognize would
be preferable.

So we are trying to give options like that to clients. Unfortu-
nately, from Quebec west the discussions with the provinces
did not result in a formal up-front role the provinces were
playing. But the provinces from Quebec west are participating
with us in the program. In many provinces they are on the
committee at the regional level that makes the decision as to
whether an application can be accepted or rejected when there
are some particularly difficult eligibility decisions.

About the application process, by whatever means the
farmer receives the application form... the form itself is
simply one page. It is not difficult to complete. We wanted to
get away from multiple forms; too much information having to
be supplied to us. It is just the basic information we need to
make an eligibility decision.

But we do need to have, in some situations, some documen-
tation which demonstrates what the reason is that the farm
business is ceasing. There are actually seven situations we have
identified where a farm business would cease because of

[Traduction]

concert avec Agriculture Canada, la Société du crédit agricole
et les provinces, nous avons essayé de mettre sur pied un
programme facile d’accés et souple.

En effet, selon la province, selon le rdle joué par le gouverne-
ment provincial a titre de liaison pour I’agriculteur, le client

peut utiliser diverses méthodes pour entrer en communication
avec nous.

Nous avons communiqué des renseignements sur le pro-
gramme aux banques, & la Société du crédit agricole, & des
conseillers en matiére de crédit, aux chargés du programme
Extension dans les provinces, aux bureaux du Service de main-
d’oeuvre agricole du Canada, aux centres d’emploi . . . bref, il
s’agit d’endroits ou les clients pourraient se rendre pour obtenir
des renseignements sur le programme et pour discuter de leur
situation avec des personnes ressources qui pourraient leur dire
si, 4 leur avis, leur demande serait jugée admissible.

Nous nous sommes également entendus avec les responsa-
bles des bureaux d’examen de I’endettement agricole pour que
les dossiers qu'’ils instruisent . .. enfin, si 'on détermine que
J’exploitation agricole n’est pas viable, le directeur du Bureau
d’examen parlera 4 lagriculteur de notre programme, lui
remettra la formule de demande, et acheminera le document.

Quant 4 la Société du crédit agricole, ses conseillers
étudient, avec le client, la formule de demande afin de
déterminer quel état financier ce dernier devra nous faire
parvenir. Au Québec, par exemple, la Société du crédit
agricole s’est engagée a procéder de cette fagon avec tous ses
clients.

Nous nous sommes également entendus avec les gouverne-
ments des provinces Maritimes. Ils feront office de personnes
ressources pour tous les clients. A notre avis, c’est la meilleure
fagon de procéder puisque les ministéres provinciaux de
I’agriculture ont des rapports trés étroits avec les agriculteurs;

nous pensons que ces derniers préféreraient discuter de la
question avec les gens qu’ils connaissent.

Nous cherchons donc a offrir ce type d’options 4 nos clients.
Malheureusement, les provinces situées a I’Quest du Québec
ne jouent pas ce rdle de premier plan, en dépit des discussions
que nous avons eues avec elles. Cependant, elles participent au
programme. Dans plusieurs cas, des représentants du gouver-
nement provincial font partie du comité régional qui doit

trancher lorsque I'on n’arrive pas a4 décider si un demandeur
satisfait aux critéres d’admissibilité.

Pour ce qui est de la présentation de la demande, ’agricul-
teur regoit d’une fagon d’une autre la formule de demande . . .
ce formulaire ne compte qu’une page. Il est assez simple a
remplir. Nous ne voulions pas utiliser un formulaire de
plusieurs pages dans lequel nous demanderions toute une
kyrielle de renseignements. Nous voulons simplement les
renseignements de base qui nous permettront de prendre une
décision.

Cependant, dans certains cas, nous devons obtenir les
documents qui expliquent pourquoi le demandeur a abandonné
lagriculture. De fait, nous avons établi une liste de sept
grandes raisons financiéres pour lesquelles un agriculteur
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financial difficulty. The first one is that a case goes through
the Farm Debt Review Board and the conclusion is that it is
not viable. Well, there is no documentary evidence required
there except confirmation from the board that yes, it is a non-
viable business.

In the case of bankruptcy, it is just a copy of the notice of
bankruptcy. In a foreclosure, it is just a copy of the foreclo-
sure. If it is a quit claim, it is the letter the farmer provides to
the lender saying he is quit-claiming. If it is a case where the
difficulty is lack of access to credit, then it is the letter from
the bank saying it cannot extend credit. Or in some cases we
have had letters from banks where a bank has said, we can
provide you with operating credit this year, but because of
your inability to pay interest charges or to reduce the level of
your debt, this will be the last time we can make an operating
loan, unless the situation changes.

® 0955

The last situation we consider is where the farmer has lost
access to the means of production. That is what we have, for
example, with share growers, who do not necessarily have any
land they own that they would have lost. There we would
accept letters from the bank confirming that they cannot get
credit, or confirmation that they will no longer have an
extension to their share cropping agreement.

The Chairman: Your answer is long. I realize it is because of
Dr. Foster’s long question, but we are sort of at the end. Do
you want to get the last question in about the suitability of the
program? I believe you asked that. Perhaps you could answer
that question. Is that reasonable, Dr. Foster?

Mr. Foster: Sure. You outlined the circumstances where
they can get it, where they can qualify. Do you automatically
trigger quickly the assistance—that $1,600 initial payment?

Mr. Stotyn: Yes. Once the person is considered to be eligible
the $1,600 transition grant is issued. The individual is inter-
viewed at the employment centre to determine what forms of
assistance on the program are going to be suitable to help the
person make the transition. If they can access our regular
programs and services, we will use those first, and then rely on
the Rural Transition Program only when our regular programs
and services are not available to the client. But we do work
with clients through a series of interviews to determine what
their skill levels are; what career path would be appropriate for
them; what their interests are—that sort of thing.

With respect to the question on training, there is an upper
limit in our terms and conditions on the amount of training we
can provide. It is $100 per day. That is a limit that is set on the
program. So in the case you were referring to, if the course is
15 days, the maximum we can provide is $1,500.

[Translation]

abandonne 'agriculture. Par exemple, un bureau d’examen de
I’endettement agricole peut étudier un dossier et décider que
cette exploitation agricole n’est pas viable. Dans ces circons-
tances, I'agriculteur n’a pas besoin de nous présenter un
document; il suffit que le bureau d’examen confirme qu’il
s’agit d’une exploitation non viable.

S’il y a eu faillite, il suffit de nous faire parvenir un avis de
faillite. S’il y a eu saisie de biens, il suffit de nous envoyer les
documents pertinents. S’il y a eu dation en paiement, I’agricul-
teur doit nous faire parvenir une copie de la lettre qu’il a fait
parvenir 4 son créancier. Si I’agriculteur ne peut obtenir le
crédit nécessaire, il faudra nous fournir une copie de la lettre
dans laquelle le directeur de la banque disait qu’il ne pouvait
lui faire crédit. Dans certains cas, par exemple, on nous a fait
parvenir des copies de lettres provenant de banques; le
directeur de banque disait a I'agriculteur qu’il pouvait lui
préter I’argent nécessaire pour I’exploitation de sa ferme cette
année-1a, mais puisqu’il était incapable de payer les intéréts ou
de rembourser une partie de sa dette, & moins que la situation
ne change, la banque ne pourrait plus lui faire crédit.

Enfin, le dernier cas est celui de I'agriculteur qui n’a plus
accés aux moyens de production. C’est le cas, par exemple, des
métayers qui n’ont pas vraiment perdu leur terre puisqu’ils
n’en sont pas propriétaires. Dans leur cas, nous accepterions les
lettres envoyées par la banque pour indiquer a I'agriculteur
qu’il ne pourra plus obtenir de crédit ou encore les lettres qui
confirmeraient 4 I’agriculteur que le contrat de métayage ne
sera pas reconduit.

Le président: Votre réponse était trés longue mais je sais que
la question de M. Foster 1’était également. Cependant, il ne
nous reste plus de temps. Voulez-vous qu’on réponde a votre
question sur la pertinence du programme? Vous pourriez peut-
étre répondre a cette question. Est-ce que ¢a vous convient,
monsieur Foster?

M. Foster: Oui. Vous avez dit dans quelles circonstances les
agriculteurs sont admissibles au programme. Dés qu’ils son
jugés admissibles, leur offrez-vous immédiatement votre aide,
soit cette subvention initiale de 1,600$?

M. Stotyn: Oui. Dés qu’une personne est jugée admissible,
elle regoit une subvention de transition de 1,600$. L’agricul-
teur est invité a se présenter 4 une entrevue au centre d’emploi
qui détermine les services dont il aura besoin pendant cette
période de transition. Si I'agriculteur est admissible 4 nos
programmes et services habituels, il y aura recours; nous
faisons appel aux services offert dans le cadre du programme
de réorientation des agriculteurs que lorsque le client ne peut
avoir recours 4 nos programmes et services ordinaires. Nous
tenons des entrevues avec ces clients afin de déterminer, entre
autres, leur niveau de compétence, de leur tracer un plan de
carriére et de découvrir leurs intéréts.

Pour ce qui est de la formation, un plafond est prévu. Par
exemple, nous offrons une subvention quotidienne de 100$ au
maximum. C’est le montant maximum prévu pour le pro-
gramme. Ainsi, pour ce qui est des circonstances dont vous
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We have had situations where we have been able to extend
the number of days over which the training program is offered
so we can pay the entire cost. That is how we resolve that
situation, if that kind of an arrangement is possible with the
training institution. If it is not, our limit is $100 a day.

The Chairman: I will have to break in, Dr. Foster. I am
going to go to Dr. Bradley. Ten minutes, Dr. Bradley.

Mr. Bradley: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I am sure you are also aware that, other than the committee
of reeves and councillors, there is also a subcommittee under
the Local Advisory Council in Tillsonburg and Woodstock. Dr.
Halliday’s riding is addressing it; and also the Local Advisory
Council in my own riding in Simcoe is addressing the problem.
In fact, it has just been granted a Community Futures.

We have had a lot of co-operation, I will say, from the onset
from Wes Nesbitt in Simcoe—a heck of a lot of co-operation.
There was a lot of confusion initially on whether people were
eligible or not. There was a lot of confusion throughout with

the program, mainly because there were two departments
involved in it initially.

I wonder, first, if you could tell me, in the rejections in
Ontario in general, and specifically the two rejections in
tobacco, what the reasons were for the rejections.

Mr. Stotyn: Of the two that were rejected who were tobacco
growers, one individual was still a tobacco grower. His
business was still continuing; he was not ceasing.

The second rejection, unfortunately, was on the basis of the
fact the person had ceased to operate a farm business prior to
February 26, 1986. That is a date that was set in the program
by tl3e Treasury Board Minister; that anybody who ceased
farming before that date would not be able to apply for the

program. We have been interpreting that as liberally as
possible, but sometimes it just—

Mr. Bradley: “Ceasing” means that he had gone bankrupt
before that date?

Mr. Stotyn: He had gone bankrupt; he had disposed of all
business asssets; he was no longer on the land or associated
with the farm in any way.

Mr. Bradley: Okay.
Mr. Stotyn: In that situation we cannot approve the
application.
® 1000

Mr. Bradley: I have a concern that the board in Ontario, as
well as the financial institutions, are estimating that as many
as 700 farmers this year could go out of tobacco farming.

[Traduction]

parliez tout a I'heure, si le cours porte sur une période de
quinze jours, nous ne pouvons offrir plus de 1,5008.

Nous avons pu, dans certains cas, prolonger la période de
financement et financer tout le cours. Nous I’avons fait parfois,
a la suite d’une entente avec I’établissement de formation. Si
c’est impossible, notre maximum est de 1008 par jour.

Le président: Je dois intervenir, monsieur Foster. Je donne

la parole & M. Bradley. Monsieur Bradley, vous avez dix
minutes.

M. Bradley: Merci, monsieur le président.

Vous savez sans aucun doute qu’en plus du comité des
maires et des conseillers, il existe un sous-comité qui reléve du
conseil consultatif local a Tillsonburg et & Woodstock. On
s’occupe de la question dans la circoncription de M. Halliday,
et le conseil consultatif local de ma circonscription, Simcoe,
étudie également le probléme. En fait, notre conseil vient de
recevoir une subvention dans le cadre du programme de
développement des collectivités.

Wes Nesbitt de Simcoe nous a vraiment beaucoup aidés. Au
début, on ne savait pas trop qui était admissible et qui ne
I’était pas. La chose était plutdt embrouillée puisqu’au début,
deux ministéres étaient responsables du programme.

Pourriez-vous m’expliquer les raisons pour lesquelles
certaines demandes présentées en Ontario, particuliérement
deux demandes émanant de producteurs de tabac, ont été
rejetées?

M. Stotyn: Deux demandes de producteurs de tabac ont été
rejetées; dans le premier cas, le requérant était toujours
producteur de tabac et n’avait pas cessé d’exploiter sa ferme.

La deuxiéme demande a due étre rejetée, malheureusement,
parce que le requérant avait abandonné I'agriculture avant le
26 février 1986. C'est la date limite qui a été prévue par le
ministre responsable du Conseil du Trésor. Quiconque a
abandonné I'agriculture avant cette date n’est pas admissible
au programme. Nous avons essayé d’interpréter cette disposi-

tion de la facon la plus libérale possible, mais il est parfois
simplement . . .

M. Bradley: Quand vous dites que quelqu’un doit avoir cessé
d’exploiter une ferme, vous voulez dire qu'il doit avoir fait
faillite avant cette date?

M. Stotyn: Il doit avoir fait faillite, s’étre défait de ses biens,
ne plus vivre sur la terre et ne plus avoir aucun lien avec cette
exploitation agricole.

M. Bradley: Trés bien.

M. Stotyn: Si le demandeur ne satisfait pas i ces critéres,
nous ne pouvons approuver sa demande.

_M. Brad!ey': L’office ontarien et les établissements finan-
ciers sont d’avis que quelque 700 agriculteurs pourraient cette
année abandonner la culture du tabac. Espérons que le
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Hopefully, the Redux Program will be in place to assist some
of them. But there will an awful lot looking into your program.

First, does it have adequate funds for an influx of that
magnitude? Second, can we be flexible enough in some
situations; as an example, where someone cannot get a loan but
still lives on his farm and cannot get rid of the farm because
who is going to buy a tobacco farm when 400 or 500 are
available? Is someone eligible who still has assets—i.e., his
tobacco farm and his equipment—although he cannot operate?

Mr. Stotyn: In the situation you describe, yes, it is possible
that a person would be eligible. It is not required that they lose
everything. They could still hold title to the home and some of
the property. If they have lost access to the means of produc-
tion by being unable to get operating loans or somebody has
seized equipment, stock, that sort of thing, then they are
eligible.

Mr. Bradley: The other question: are there adequate funds?

Mr. Ray: We believe so, yes. I do not think there will be any
problem. Well, I should not say “any problem”. At this point
in time, barring disaster in 1987 in a lot of other areas as well,
I think for the combination of the Redux Program and the
CRTP program we will have adequate funds.

Mr. Bradley: I do not think there is any problem. The
concern too is that some, although they could get an operating
loan, would just lose money. They may have adequate
investment, but to go out and borrow $60,000 to put into a
crop out of which they are going to get $40,000 really is not
good finances. With that position and the fact that their farm
has dropped maybe 50% in value and they are trying to sell it
and get out but trying to survive in the meantime, I think they
have to be a little flexible that way.

While we have you here, if we might just for a second go to
the Redux Program, the Minister announced, if my memory
serves me correctly, that 2% of the 6% of the increase in
tobacco tax last year would go to the industry. Am I right in
assuming, as everyone else in southern Ontario are assuming,
that, as long as that 6% tax is on, that 2% will continue, for a
period anyway, going into programs to assist the tobacco
industry?

Mr. Ray: At the present point in time, Cabinet Ministers
have decided on a cap of about $30 million towards the
tobacco assistance program. Obviously, one of the points of
discussion with some of the major tobacco groups is whether
$30 million is an adequate representation of (@) the problem
and hence what has to be done, or () what the intent was in
the budget itself, where there was talk about this percentage
on a percentage sort of thing. But, as I say, at the present point
in time Ministers have agreed on a $30-million package, if I
can call it that.

[Translation]

programme Redux pourra en aider quelques-uns. Cependant,
un bon nombre de ces agriculteurs devront se tourner vers
votre programme.

Avez-vous les ressources financiéres nécessaires pour aider
autant d’agriculteurs? En second lieu, pouvons-nous faire
preuve de souplesse dans certaines circonstances; je pense par
exemple a I'agriculteur qui vit toujours dans sa maison, sur la
ferme, mais qui ne peut vendre cette ferme parce que personne
n’achétera une exploitation agricole du genre s’il y en a 400 ou
500 sur le marché. Est-ce qu’une personne qui ne s’est pas
défaite de ses biens—sa ferme ou ses machines agricoles—
mais qui ne peut exploiter sa ferme—peut étre admissible au
programme?

M. Stotyn: Si une personne se trouve dans la situation que
vous venez de décrire, elle pourrait étre admissible au pro-
gramme. Il n’est pas nécessaire que l’agriculteur ait tout
perdu. Il peut toujours posséder le titre de propriété sur la
maison ou certains biens. Si I'agriculteur n’a plus accés aux
moyens de production, s’il ne peut obtenir de préts ou si
quelqu’un a saisi ses biens, son matériel, il sera alors admissi-
ble.

M. Bradley: Et I'autre question? Disposez-vous des ressour-
ces financiéres nécessaires?

M. Ray: Nous le pensons. Il ne devrait pas y avoir de
probléme. S’il n’y a pas de crise dans d’autres secteurs en
1987, je crois que le programme Redux et le PCRA dispose-
ront des ressources financiéres nécessaires.

M. Bradley: Je ne crois pas qu’il y ait de probléme. De toute
fagon, méme s’ils pouvaient obtenir un prét, certains craignent
de se retrouver dans une situation déficitaire. Ils auront peut-
étre l'argent nécessaire, mais emprunter 60,0008 pour la
production d’une récolte qu’ils ne vendront que 40,0008 n’est
pas vraiment rentable. Je crois qu’il faut étre souple lorsqu’on
instruit les demandes de ces personnes, parce qu’aprés tout,
leur ferme a peut-étre perdu la moitié de sa valeur, et ils
veulent la vendre et abandonner I’agriculture, mais entre-
temps, ils doivent essayer de survivre.

Jaimerais profiter de votre présence ce matin pour vous
poser quelques questions sur le programme Redux; si je ne me
trompe, le ministre a dit que des 6 p. 100 d’augmentation des
taxes sur le tabac ’année derniére, 2 p. 100 reviendraient aux
producteurs. Ai-je raison de supposer, comme le font tous les
résidents du sud de I’Ontario, que tant que l’on paiera cette
taxe de 6 p. 100, 2 p. 100 en seront affectés au programme
visant 4 aider les producteurs de tabac?

M. Ray: Pour I'instant, le Cabinet a décidé de plafonner i
30 millions de dollars environ le programme d’aide aux
producteurs de tabac. Lors de nos discussions, les groupes
représentant I'industrie du tabac posent des questions fort
pertinentes: est-ce que ce montant de 30 millions suffit, compte
tenu du probléme et des solutions qu’il faut y apporter? Que
voulait-on vraiment dire dans le budget lorsqu’on a parlé de
réserver une partie des taxes? Mais, comme je I’ai déja dit, les
ministres se sont entendus pour réserver 30 millions de dollars
pour ce secteur.
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I think it relates back to one of Dr. Foster’s questions on the
adequacy of it. We do not know yet, to be quite frank. We
hope to have a much better handle going through the winter;
January, February, by the end of March we should have a
pretty good handle on both the take-up rate in both areas—not
only the tobacco growing but under CRTP in general—and the
average amount of assistance paid and whether we are working
them through the system as fairly and as humanely as possible.
I think then we might be able better to answer whether the $30
million and whether the procedures, if I can call them that, are
adequate in nature.

Mr. Bradley: Are you aware that the previous board had
been quite adamant that the money go only to those growers
that are staying in the industry and that the present board has
reversed that and feels that the money should go only to those
people getting out of the industry?

Mr. Ray: Yes.

The Chairman: Thank you, Dr. Bradley.

Mr. Althouse: I would like a couple of explanatory com-

ments from you. They all relate to the description of the
program in the brochure.

® 1005

You spoke of the upper limit being $100 per day for training
assistance. Is there a cap on the amount of days, or the total
amount that each applicant may be able to go to?

_ Mr. Stotyn: Yes. It is a maximum of 52 weeks of training. It
1s not 52 calendar weeks, but 52 weeks where we will provide
the income support while on training.

Mr. A!thouse: So that could then be five-day weeks. At $500
a week times 52 that would be—

Mr. Stotyn: A lot of money. I am not aware of any training

courses that are that expensive for that length of time; but, yes,
thatis...

Mr. Althouse: So the 52 weeks then would effectively rule
out a three- or four-year kind of training course?

Mr. Stotyn: Yes, but it allows up to two years because most
courses are thirteen-week semesters.

Mr. Althouse: Right. I think you explained the $1,600 grant
that will be paid. It speaks of “additional grants may be paid”
to cover costs of living, shelter, or moving and interim accom-
modation. What criteria are used there if the $1,600 is not
enough? If they move a very long distance, when would that
kick in?

Mr. Stotyn: What is referred to there is called supplemen-
tary transition assistance. That is for a period of a further five

[Traduction]

Je crois qu’on en revient en quelque sorte a la question qu’a
posée M. Foster tout a I’heure sur la pertinence du pro-
gramme. Je dois étre honnéte et reconnaitre que nous ne le
savons pas encore. Nous espérons en savoir plus long aprés
I’hiver; en janvier, février, d’ici la fin du mois de mars, nous
devrions vraiment en savoir plus long sur le nombre de
demandes approuvées dans les deux secteurs—pas simplement
chez les producteurs de tabac mais également dans le cadre du
PCRA; nous devrions également savoir le montant moyen
accordé aux demandeurs et nous devrions étre en mesure de
dire si ces gens ont été traités de facon juste et humaine. Nous
pourrons également vous dire 4 ce moment-la si ce montant de
30 millions de dollars et le systéme sont adéquats.

M. Bradley: Savez-vous que I’ancien office de commerciali-
sation avait exigé que seuls les producteurs qui veulent
poursuivre leurs activités dans ce secteur soient admissibles au
programme? L’office actuel n’est pas du tout du méme avis et
croit que ces ressources financiéres devraient étre utilisées pour
aider ceux qui veulent abandonner la culture du tabac.

M. Ray: Oui.
Le président: Merci, monsieur Bradley.

M. Althouse: J’aimerais vous demander de me fournir
quelques explications. Toutes mes questions portent sur la
description du programme que vous donnez dans la brochure.

Vous avez parlé du plafond de 1008 par jour pour I'aide 4 la
formation. Chaque personne qui en fait la demande est-elle
limitée 4 un nombre maximum de jours ou 4 un montant total?

M. Stotyn: Oui. La formation ne saurait dépasser 52
semaines. Je ne parle pas de 52 semaines civiles, mais de 52
semaines de formation au cours desquelles nous versons une
allocation de subsistance.

M. Althouse: Il peut donc s’agir de semaines de cing jours.
A raison de 5008 par semaine, multipliés par 52, cela fait . . .

M. Stotyn: Beaucoup d’argent. A ma connaissance, il
n’existe aucun cours de formation qui soit aussi coditeux
pendant aussi longtemps; mais, oui, c’est . . .

M. Althouse: En fixant la limite 4 52 semaines, vous

éliminez en fait les programmes de formation de trois ou
quatre ans?

M. Stotyn: Oui, mais cela permet de suivre un programme

de deux ans, puisque la plupart des cours sont offerts par
semestre de treize semaines.

M. Althouse: En effet. Je crois que vous avez expliqué la
subvention de 1,6008. Il est également question dans la
brochure de «subventions supplémentaires qui pourront étre
versées» en vue de payer les frais de séjour, de déplacement ou
de logerpent temporaire. Si les 1,600% ne suffisent pas, sur
quels critéres vous basez-vous pour verser ce supplément? Si

par exen'lple on doit déménager trés loin, quand a-t-on droit a
ce supplément?

M.'Stotyn': Il s’agit de ce que nous appelons les subventions
supplémentaires de transition. Celles-ci sont versées pendant
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months, and it is payable to an individual or family if they are
still not permanently employed and are not receiving unem-
ployment insurance or not receiving welfare payments from
the province or are not on a training course and receiving
training support from us.

It is there if the individual has no other source of income.
The rates are, for a single person, $140 a week; $28 a week
extra for the first dependant; and then $14 a week for every
additional dependant.

Mr. Althouse: So this would tend to be used by people who
are so emotionally shattered by the experience that they are
not able to do a training course or are physically unable to—

Mr. Stotyn: Or they might just be waiting for a training
course. If they come on the program in June and the training
course starts in September, we will provide them the supple-
mentary assistance until they can start the training.

Mr. Althouse: Okay. At number 3 you also have “may be
eligible for travel and relocation assistance over and above
that”. That would be to an institution that is somewhat
removed or ... ?

Mr. Stotyn: Yes. If they have to travel to obtain the
training, we can pay them a commuting allowance. The
relocation is that, if they have found employment in another
community, then we will pay their actual costs of moving, up
to $3,000. We also have an exploratory where, if they have a
job interview in another community, we will pay them 10¢ a
kilometre to go and take the interview because that improves
their possibilities of finding employment.

Mr. Althouse: Okay. Perhaps you could explain the self-
employment grants. The brochure says that a maximum grant
of $180 per week for up to 26 weeks may be paid to an eligible
farm family member. What are the criteria there so if we get
asked about it we can be of some use?

Mr. Stotyn: They have to meet the basic criteria for the
program; but, in addition, they must have submitted to us a
business proposal in which they have demonstrated that the
business is likely to succeed. It might be necessary for them to
have surveyed their market, obtained confirmation from
Chambers of Commerce or letters from the bank showing that,
yes, the business is likely to be successful.

Once we have approved the business plan and we have
established, by talking with Chambers of Commerce or DRIE,
that they are not going to upset an existing business by setting
up a new one, we can provide them with the self-employment
grant.

Mr. Althouse: And is that similar to the kind of grant
available to employers; if the retiring farmer goes to work for a

[Translation)

une période supplémentaire de cinq mois d une personne ou a
sa famille si ces personnes n’ont toujours pas trouvé d’emploi
permanent, ne recoivent pas l’assurance-chomage ou I’assis-
tance sociale de la province, ne suivent pas de cours de
formation et ne regoivent aucune aide i la formation chez
nous.

Cette aide financiére est versée a la personne qui n’a aucune
autre source de revenu. Nous versons 4 la personne célibataire,
1408 par semaine; 283 par semaine de plus pour une premiére
personne a charge; et 148 par semaine pour chaque personne 4
charge supplémentaire.

M. Althouse: Ce sont donc des personnes tellement abattues
qu’elles ne peuvent suivre un cours de formation ou encore qui
sont physiquement incapables . . .

M. Stotyn: Ou les personnes qui attendent I'ouverture d’un
cours de formation. Si les intéressés sont admissibles au
programme au mois de juin, mais que le cours ne commence
qu’au mois de septembre, nous offrons des subventions
supplémentaires jusqu'd I'ouverture de ce cours.

M. Althouse: Trés bien. Au numéro 3, vous dites également
«ne pourra obtenir un appui financier que pour les déplace-
ments et la réinstallation». Serait-ce pour assister 4 des cours
dans un établissement qui est assez éloignéou . .. ?

M. Stotyn: Oui. Si les intéressés doivent se déplacer pour
suivre un cours de formation, nous leur versons une allocations
de déplacement. Pour ce qui est de I'appui financier 4 la
réinstallation, si les personnes admissibles ont trouvé un emploi
dans une autre localité, nous remboursons les dépenses
effectives de déménagement jusqu’a concurrence de 3,0008. Il
y a également une allocation si la personne admissible doit se
rendre dans une autre localité pour une entrevue, auquel cas
nous versons 10c. du kilométre afin que l'intéressé puisse se
rendre 4 I’entrevue puisque cela améliore ses possibilités de
trouver un emploi.

M. Althouse: Trés bien. Peut-étre pourriez-vous nous
expliquer la subvention 4 I’emploi autonome. Vous dites dans
votre brochure qu’'un membre admissible de la famille pourra
recevoir une subvention de 180% par semaine au maximum,
pendant au plus 26 semaines. Sur quels critéres vous fondez-
vous, afin que nous puissions répondre si on nous interroge a ce
sujet?

M. Stotyn: Les intéressés doivent répondre aux critéres de
base du programme; mais, en outre, ils doivent nous avoir
présenté un plan d’exploitation dans lequel ils démontrent le
succes probable de leur entreprise, Il leur faut peut-étre avoir
fait une analyse du marché, avoir obtenu confirmation de la
Chambre de commerce ou de la banque démontrant que cette
entreprise réussira fort probablement.

Lorsque nous avons approuvé le plan d’exploitation et que
nous avons déterminé aprés avoir parlé 4 la Chambre de
commerce ou au MEIR, que cette entreprise ne va pas nuire a
des entreprises semblables, nous pouvons verser la subvention a
I’emploi autonome.

M. Althouse: Est-elle semblable 4 la subvention dont
peuvent se prévaloir les employeurs; c’est-d-dire que si un
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new employer he is eligible for the subsidy of up to $3.50 an
hour?
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Mr. Stotyn: Yes, that is the wage reimbursement.

Mr. Althouse: And up to $3.50 an hour is a sharing thing. Is
the 50:50 up to $7.00 basically what you are talking about?

Mr. Stotyn: Yes, it is 50%, and our maximum is $3.50 an
hour.

Mr. Althouse: The only other thing 1 was curious about is
the document you passed around on the numbers of people
accepted, rejected, and awaiting further action. I notice the
numbers are quite small, so they do not tell us all that much,
but I note there seems to be a bit of a variation in the
approved:reject ratio out of B.C. and Saskatchewan as
compared with the rest of the country. As I say, the numbers
are so small they do not tell us anything. But for most of the
country it seems to be about 20% reject. Alberta is only
roughly 15% or 16%, but in B.C. and Saskatchewan it is
pushing 30% to 40%. Is there any special circumstances you
are aware of in those two provinces, or do we just have a blip
in a very small sample?

M. Stotyn: I think it is a blip in a very small sample. I have
actually examined just over half of the rejections where I have
a copy of documentation on the files, and with only very few
exceptions have we gone back the regions and asked them to
look at particulars of the case and it has resulted in an
approval. I think we have had about five cases like that.

I think what may have happened is that in some regions
there has been.more discussion with the client before the client
actually submits an application. Some clients may recognize

they are not eligible and therefore they do not submit an
application.

In Saskatchewan, for example, considering the distances
that have to be travelled and that sort of thing, we may be
getting more applications by mail than elsewhere. But I have
not noticed any differences in the kinds of decisions being
made across the country. We have been very careful to
monitor that very closely.

Mr. Althouse: So in the initial stages you are pretty well
convinced your procedures are the same across the country.

Mr. Stotyn: As much as they can be. It is difficult to be
totally the same, because the decisions are very subjective, in
many cases.

Mr. Ray: Your point is a good one, though. I think what Cal
is saying is that copies of all the rejections are coming into
Ottawa, at least initially, because we are worried, just like you,
that similar cases in different parts of the country should be
dealt with in a similar fashion. We just want to make sure if

[Traduction)

agriculteur qui abandonne I'agriculture va travailler pour un
nouvel employeur, est-il admissible & une subvention de 3,50%
de I’heure au maximum?

M. Stotyn: Oui, c’est le remboursement de salaire.

M. Althouse: Jusqu'a 3.508$ de I'heure, c’est un partage des
cofits. En fait, c’est moitié-moitié, jusqu’a concurrence de
7.008?

M. Stotyn: Oui, c’est 50 p. 100, et notre part s’éléve au
maximum, 4 3.508 de I'heure.

M. Althouse: La seule autre chose qui m'intrigue, c’est le
document que vous avez distribué et ou figure le nombre de
demandes accueillies, rejetées ou pendantes. Je constate que
les chiffres sont faibles, et donc ne nous disent pas grand-
chose, mais il semble y avoir une différence dans le pourcen-
tage de demandes approuvées par rapport aux demandes
rejetées en Colombie-Britannique et en Saskatchewan, par
rapport au reste du pays. Comme je I’ai dit, les chiffres sont si
faibles qu’ils ne nous disent pas grand-chose. Toutefois le taux
de demandes rejetées semble s’élever a environ 20 p. 100 dans
presque tout le pays. En Alberta, ce taux n’est que de 15 ou 16
p. 100, alors qu’en Colombie-Britannique et en Saskatchewan,
on atteint un taux de 30 & 40 p. 100. Y a-t-il des circonstances
spéciales, & votre connaissance, dans ces deux provinces, ou
sagit-il simplement d’une anomalie dans un échantillonnage
trés petit?

M. Stotyn: Je crois que c’est une anomalie. En fait, jai
examiné un peu plus de la moiti¢ des demandes rejetées, dans
les cas ou j'ai la documentation, et & quelques exceptions prés,
nous avons demandé au personnel dans les régions d’étudier les
détails du dossier; et la demande a été approuvée. Je crois que
cela s’est produit dans cinq cas environ.

A mon avis, ce qui s’est passé, c’est que dans certaines
régions, il y a eu des discussions plus poussées avec le client
avant que celui-ce ne présente sa demande. Certains se sont
rendu compte qu’ils n’étaient pas admissibles et donc n’ont pas
présenté de demande.

En Saskatchewan par contre, vu les distances & parcourir,
nous recevons peut-étre un plus grand nombre de demandes
par la poste qu’ailleurs. Mais je n’ai constaté aucune différence
dans les décisions prises a travers le pays. Nous avons pris
grand soin de surveiller la chose de trés prés.

M. Althouse: Donc vous étes plus ou moins convaincus que

votre procédure, du moins aux premiéres étapes, est la méme
partout au pays.

< M. Stotyn: Dans toute la mesure du possible. 11 est difficile
d’uniformiser complétement, car il s’agit de décisions trés
subjectives dans de nombreux cas.

M. Ray: Vous avez parfaitement raison cependant. Je crois
que Cal veut dire que nous recevons a Ottawa copie de toutes
les demandes rejetées au moins au début du programme, car
tout comme vous, nous voulons nous assurer que des dossiers
semblables dans différentes parties du pays sont traités de la
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there is a rejection or if one province is running higher than
the other, or one type of commodity is running higher than the
other, there is a good reason for it, basically.

Mr. Binns: | am wondering about the definition, again, of a
person who has left farming.

I will be specific in my question. I have a producer who did
not grow a crop this year. In fact, he did not grow a crop in
1985; but he grew a crop in 1984 which was sold in 1985. He
wanted to grow a crop in 1985, but he could not get any
money; and he still could not get any money this year.
Basically, and to complicate this a bit, he turned 65 last year.
But we cannot assume from that he has enough money to meet
his obligations. He is getting the old age pension, but he
cannot meet his debt obligations, so he is juggling the tax
department, everybody from Canada Pension to property taxes
to machinery companies to gas companies, and so on. He still
has the farm. He still has the assets. There has been nothing
seized, to my knowledge. Would he qualify for the Rural
Transition program?

Mr. Stotyn: Because you indicated he still has the farm
assets, he still has a direct connection with the farm, he is
potentially eligible. There has to be evidence of financial
difficulty that has resulted in the farm business ceasing. You
mentioned he has not been able to gain access to credit, so that
should suffice. But it is very difficult for me to make very
definite statements on cases, because we really do need the
particulars.
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Mr. Binns: There is the trouble. I am reluctant to refer this
guy to the program, to run around for three or four months
and then be told no. That is why I am asking: would he qualify
or not? He still has the farm. He has put the farm up for sale.
There are no buyers for the farm. He cannot even sell the
machinery; nobody wants it. His commodity is depressed.

Mr. Stotyn: What is he growing?
Mr. Binns: Potatoes.

Mr. Stotyn: Based on what you have said, I would consider
him to be eligible.

Mr. Binns: Now, what would happen if he did not sell the
farm? It is a transition program. I do not think you are going
to retrain this fellow, so if he does not find other employment
and move off the farm, I am assuming he would still qualify
for the grant.

Mr. Stotyn: He has to be seeking alternate employment. If
his intention is to retire, the program is not available to people
who are retiring. But because you say he is looking for other
sources of income, I assume he would be actively seeking
employment.

[Translation)

méme fagon. Nous voulons nous assurer que s’il y a rejet d’une
demande ou si dans une province, le taux de rejet est plus élevé
que dans les autres, ou que le nombre d’abandons dans un type
d’exploitation est plus élevé que pour les autres, il y a pour cela
de bonnes raisons.

M. Binns: Je m’interroge sur la définition de personne qui a
abandonné I’agriculture.

Je vais vous poser une question précise. J'ai dans ma
circonscription un agriculteur qui n’a rien cultivé cette année.
En fait, il n’a rien cultivé en 1985; mais il avait un récolte en
1984 qu’il a vendue en 1985. 1l voulait cultiver son terrain en
1985, mais il n’arrivait pas 4 trouver de I’argent; il ne pouvait
pas non plus trouver d’argent cette année. Puis, et c’est ce qui
complique un peu la chose, il a eu 65 ans ’an dernier. Mais il
ne faudrait pas pour autant supposer qu'il a suffisamment
d’argent pour faire face a ses obligations. Il touche la pension
de vieillesse mais il ne peut pas rembourser ses dettes, il essaie
donc de partager ses paiements entre le ministére du Revenu,
Régime de pensions du Canada, I'impdt foncier, ses fournis-
seurs de machinerie et de gaz, etc. Il a encore sa ferme. Il a
toujours son bien. A ma connaissance, rien n’a été saisi. Serai-
il admissible au Programme de réorientation des agriculteurs?

M. Stotyn: Parce que vous avez dit qu’il avait toujours sa
ferme, qu’il avait toujours un lien direct avec sa terre, il
pourrait étre admissible. Il faut faire la preuve que des
difficultés financiéres ont entrainé la fin de toute exploitation
agricole. Vous avez mentionné qu’il n’avait pu obtenir de
crédit, ce qui devrait suffire. Toutefois, il m’est trés difficile de
me prononcer avec certitude sans avoir tous les détails.

M. Binns: C’est 1a la difficulté. J’hésite 2 mentionner le
programme & ce type, de peur qu’il doive faire des démarches
pendant trois ou quatre mois pour voir ensuite sa demande
refusée. C’est pourquoi je vous demande: est-il ou non
admissible? Il a toujours sa ferme. Il I'a mise en vente. Mais il
n’y a aucun acheteur pour la ferme, et il n’y en a pas non plus
pour I’équipement; personne n’en veut. Le prix de son produit
est tres bas.

M. Stotyn: Qu’est-ce qu’il cultive?
M. Binns: La pomme de terre.

M. Stotyn: D’aprés ce que vous dites, je dirais qu’il est
admissible.

M. Binns: Que se produira-t-il s’il ne vend pas sa ferme? Il
s’agit d’'un programme de réorientation. Je ne crois pas qu’il
soit possible de réorienter ce type, et donc s’il ne trouve pas
d’autre emploi, s’il ne quitte pas sa ferme, je présume qu’il
serait néanmoins admissible 4 une subvention.

M. Stotyn: Il doit chercher un emploi. S’il a I'intention de
prendre sa retraite, il n’est pas admissible 4 ce programme.
Mais, puisque vous dites qu'il cherche une autre source de
revenu, je présume qu’il cherche activement un emploi.
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We have a case of sombody 72 years old, in British
Columbia, who is seeking employment actively. He is on the
program. So the age limitation is not there. It appears to me

that he could be eligible on the program, provided he is seeking
employment.

If someone goes back into farming a year or two later, that
is not of concern to us. It is that there is a farm business that
has failed financially, that the owner-operator is no longer able
to earn a living from a farm business. But if, two years later,
they scrape together enough cash, credit, or whatever, and
purchase, lease, or rent other farm assets and go back into a
farming business, that is all right. They do not have to sign a
statement saying they are not going to farm any more; it is just
that a farm business has already ceased.

Mr. Binns: Okay. To do with the numbers from Prince
Edward Island, I notice we have two rejections out of a total of

eight applications, one still pending, and five approved. Are
any of those tobacco cases?

Mr. Bradley: Just the two in your riding.

Mr. Stotyn: I am sorry; I cannot say definitely what they
are. | would be very surprised if they were. I think they are
probably in potatoes.

Mr. Binns: Yes, I think they are basically in potatoes.

In terms of the Redux Program itself, would that be holding
back applications—or do you have any evidence that it is—
because it is still up in the air?

Mr. Ray: I would say yes, and not only the Redux Program,
but also the Farm Debt Review Board. One of the side benefits
we are finding on the board itself is the mere fact that it is
there; ghgre_fore, when creditors go in to talk to farmers or vice
versa, if it is not a marginal case, they are now more likely to
reach agreement prior to going through the debt review
structure. They can be tied up for 120 days, and if they have a
large amount of assets out there on which they are willing to
gamble for another year, it is having some benefit. There is no
question about it, particularly in some provinces, we are
finding.

I think it is the same thing on tobacco. I think basically a
program will be in place shortly, and I think people are waiting
to see prior to pushing the panic button.

Mr. Binns: When you talk about a program, I think
everyone thought initially there might be a national Redux
Program. Maybe that still could happen, but my guess is that
what is good for southern Ontario does not necessarily work in
Quebec or in the Maritimes. Am I correct in understanding
that the department, together with the Department of Finance,
will conclude agreements with individual growing regions and
individual boards as opposed to one master program?

[Traduction]

Nous avons quelqu’un qui a 72 ans en Colombie-Britanni-
que, qui cherche activement un emploi. Il a recours au
programme. Il n’y a donc pas de limite d’age. Il me semble
qu’il pourrait étre admissible, 4 condition qu’il cherche un
emploi.

Si quelqu’un revient a I’agriculture dans un an ou deux, cela
ne nous concerne pas. Ce qui nous intéresse, c’est que ’exploi-
tation agricole ait périclité pour des motifs financiers et que le
propriétaire—exploitant ne soit plus en mesure de gagner sa
vie dans I'agriculture. Par contre, si dans deux ans, quelqu’un
peut réunir suffisamment d’argent, de crédits, ou que sais-je,
pour acheter, prendre d bail ou louer une autre ferme et
reprendre la production agricole, c’est trés bien. Il n’est pas
nécessaire de signer une déclaration dans laquelle on s’engage
a ne plus jamais exploiter une ferme; il faut qu'une entreprise
agricole ait cessé d’exister.

M. Binns: Trés bien. Au sujet des chiffres que vous avez
pour I'lle-du-Prince-Edouard, je constate qu'il y a eu deux
rejets sur huit demandes, qu'une demande est toujours a
I’étude et que cing ont été approuvées. S’agit-il de producteurs
de tabac?

M. Bradley: Il n’y a que les deux qui sont dans votre
circonscription.

M. Stotyn: Je regrette, je ne saurais le dire exactement.
Mais je serais des plus surpris si c’était le cas. Je crois que
¢’était probablement des producteurs de pommes de terre.

M. Binns: Oui, je crois qu’ils produisent surtout de la
pomme de terre.

En ce qui concerne le programme de réductions, est-ce qu’il
a diminué le nombre de demandes—avez-vous des données
ce sujet—car rien n’est encore décidé?

M. Ray: Je dirais que oui, mais il n’y a pas que le pro-
gramme de réductions, il y a également la Bureau d’examen de
I’endettement agricole. Nous constatons que le Bureau par sa
simple existence comporte un avantage; aussi, lorsque les
créanciers vont discuter avec les agriculteurs ou vice-versa, s'il
ne s’agit pas d’un cas marginal, il y a maintenant plus de
chances qu’ils parviennent 4 s’entendre sans méme passer par
le Bureau. Tout peut étre retardé pendant 120 jours, et si le
producteur posséde des biens considérables, et qu’il soit disposé
a jouer le tout pour le tout pendant encore un an, cela donne
certains résultats. C’est incontestable, surtout dans certaines
provinces, d’aprés ce que nous avons vu.

Je crois qu’il en va de méme pour le tabac. Essentiellement,
je crois que le programme sera en place trés bientdt et donc on
est prét a attendre avant de paniquer.

M. Binns: Lorsque vous parlez d’un programme, je Crois
qu’a l'origine, tous s’attendaient 4 ce qu'il y ait un programme
national de réductions. Cela se produira peut-étre encore, mais
jai l_’imprcssion que ce qui convient au sud de 1'Ontario ne
conviendrait pas nécessairement au Québec ou aux Maritimes.
A{-J; bien compris que le ministére, de concert avec le
n}lmstére des Finances va conclure des ententes avec les
diverses régions productrices et les bureaux, plutét que
d’essayer de mettre sur pied un programme général?
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Mr. Ray: It is a little too early for me to speak to that, but I
would say that in all likelihood we will enter into at least
provincial arrangements, if not agreements. While there will
be a national thread through the elements of the programming,
it will be tuned to the needs of the local areas. I think that is a
very fair comment to make.

The Chairman: This will be your last question, Mr. Binns.

Mr. Binns: There is quite a fear in the industry that a
program may only benefit the bureaucracy; that the dollars
intended for the program will not end up in cash transfers to
the growers who are affected by the general decline. I do not
know if that is a question, but it is certainly something I want
to be as specific about as I can. They just do not want to see
something that is all tied up in bureaucracy, that they cannot
get their hands on. They do not want to be involved in a
program that tries to move them into a commodity that there
is no value of going into, or that will not work, or what-have-
you. They would like to get the money, and then get out and do
something.

Mr. Ray: I think I can allay some of your fears. The
requests that we will make to the Treasury Board Ministers
will not include any requests for either person-years or salary
dollars, that sort of thing. The tobacco program will be
implemented, using existing departmental resources. It will not
be part of the program dollars that, as you say, should go into
the hands of the growers.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Binns.

Mr. Ray, I think you are being very good to us about @he
Redux Program. We are discussing the Rural Transition
Program, but that is very good. Thank you for doing so.

Mr. Bradley: He knows about it.

The Chairman: The next speaker is Mr. Ferland. You will
need your translation if you are not bilingual.

M. Ferland: Merci, monsieur le président.

Vous dites qu’un agriculteur qui aura profité du programme
pourra retourner en agriculture par la suite. Ai-je bien saisi ce
que vous avez dit tout 4 I'heure? Le programme permet a
I'agriculteur de se recycler dans un domaine autre que celui de
I’agriculture, et j’ai cru comprendre qu’un agriculteur pouvait
profiter de ce programme pendant deux ans et ensuite se
relancer dans un autre domaine agricole ou dans le méme
domaine. Est-ce exact?

Mr. Ray: Yes, it is. I think we can say that there are two
situations—Cal, you might want to speak to this. Number one,
if the person wants assistance to start a new business, the
business cannot be farming. The program will not fund him to
get back into farming per se; not with the start-up grant.

[Translation]

M. Ray: Il est encore un peu trop tot pour que je puisse vous
répondre, mais il est fort probable que nous allons a tout le
moins nous entendre avec les provinces sinon conclure des
ententes. Méme si ses modalités auront toutes un certain
caractére national, le programme sera axé sur les besoins des
régions. Je crois que c’est ce qu’on peut dire.

Le président: Ce sera votre derniére question, monsieur
Binns.

M. Binns: On s’inquiéte beaucoup dans l'industrie qu’un
programme ne profitera qu’a la bureaucratie; que l’argent
destiné au programme ne sera pas transféré en espéces aux
producteurs qui sont touchés par le déclin général. Je ne sais
pas si c’est une question, mais je vais certainement essayer
d’étre le plus précis possible. On ne veut tout simplement pas
voir quelque chose d’emberlificoté dans la bureaucratie,
quelque chose que les producteurs ne peuvent pas toucher. Ils
ne veulent pas faire partie d’'un programme qui essaie de les
encourager a produire quelque chose qui n’a aucune valeur, ou
qui ne donnera pas de résultats, ou que sais-je. Ils aimeraient
toucher I’argent, et ensuite faire quelque chose eux-mémes.

M. Ray: Je crois pouvoir apaiser certaines de vos craintes.
La demande que nous présenterons aux ministres du Conseil
du Trésor ne portera ni sur des années-personnes ni sur de
'argent destiné 4 payer des salaires, rien de semblable. Cest
grice aux ressources actuelles du ministére que nous mettrons
en oeuvre le programme visant le tabac. Cela ne réduira en
rien le budget du programme dont ’argent, comme vous le
dites, doit aller aux producteurs.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Binns.

Monsieur Ray, je crois que vous avez été bien aimable avec
nous en nous parlant du programme de réductions. Nous
sommes ici pour parler du Programme canadien de réorienta-
tion des agriculteurs, mais vous vous étes montré bon prince.
Merci beaucoup.

M. Bradley: 1l le sait.

Le président: Nous entendrons maintenant M. Ferland.
Vous allez devoir utiliser I'interprétation si vous n’étes pas
bilingue.

Mr. Ferland: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

You say that a grower who has availed himself of the
program will be able to get back into agriculture later on. Did
I understand correctly what you were saying a while ago? This
program will allow a grower to recycle himself in an area other
than agriculture and this, if I understood correctly, for two
years; he can then start up in another commodity or even
produce the same crop. Is that right?

M. Ray: Oui, en effet. Je crois que I'on peut affirmer qu’il y
a deux cas—Cal, vous voudrez peut-étre dire quelque chose a
ce sujet. D’abord il y a le cas de I'agriculteur qui souhaite
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